3i GP 2013 Ltd

Annual report and accounts for the yea

Registered number: 08489159

FRIDAY

r to 31 March 2018

AD

I

ATBL2ENV

*
03/08/2018

COMPANIES HOUSE

1

#152

|



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159
Contents

[ =T LT LY oo o G U OO SP R O ORON 1

Statement of Directors’ responSibDIlEs ... ..ot e 3

F T o) (e a0 (=T o Vo o O O U ST PUU PR 4

Statement of cOMPrehensSIVE INCOMB... ... ..o ot s e e 7
Statement of CHANGES IN EQUITY.... oo et e ee e rs e st s et res s a s e es et st ens 7

Statement of fiNAaNCial POSIHION ... e et e e s as e 8

SEALEMENE OF CASN FIOWS - oeeeessoemres e esessssssssessessseses s sssoeses oo seseeesseemss et onee 9

ACCOUNLING PONCIBS «-...eoiiiioi ittt eee et s eee e e s et e e te b e e ae s it nce s e e e s s b amameeeo s rmameaseees smesnsaan 10

Notes t0 fiNanNCIal StAtEMENES ... . ... ittt ettt e e e e e e e ar e sne e eapas e mg 2 ean e enmpsnnnneans 12



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Directors’ report

The Directors submit their report on 3i GP 2013 Lid (the “Company”) with the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Company was established on 15 April 2013 and is domiciled in England as a company under the
Companies Act 2006. The registered office of the Company is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E §JD.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the General Partner of a number of Partnerships
established as part of 3i Group plc's ("3i") 2013 vintage of capital carry schemes and 3i managed
Partnerships as given in note 10.

Development

There have been no changes in the activity of the Company in the year and the Directors do not foresee
any future changes.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company is a subsidiary of 3i. 3i sets objectives, policies and processes for managing and
monitoring risk. These are outlined in the 31 March 2018 3i Group plc Annual Report and Accounts.

Results and dividends
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year after tax amounted to €552,114 (2017: €509,583).

The Directors declared and paid interim dividends for the year of €1,010,000 (2017: €1,480,000). The
Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the year {2017: €nil).

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Directors’ report

Directors

The following served as Directors throughout the year and ta the date of this report except where
otherwise indicated:

lan Cooper {appeinted on 19/12/2017)
Jasi Halal

Jonathan Murphy

Kevin Dunn

Matt Shelley (resigned on 07/12/2017)

Going concern

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least twelve months. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concem hasis for preparing the financial statements.

Exemption from presenting a Strategic Report

The Directors have taken the exemption available under Section 414B of the Companies Act in not
presenting a Strategic Report.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Pursuant to s418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confirms that: (a) so far as they
are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware; and (b) they have
taken all steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any refevant audit information
and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

Auditor

Emst & Young LLP remains in office as auditor of the Company in accordance with section 487(2) of
the Companies Act 20086.

By Order of the Board

Jasi Halai
Director

Registered Office:
16 Palace Street
Lendon

SW1E 5JD

26 July 2018



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union {(EU). Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The
Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i GP 2013 Ltd

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i GP 2013 Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2618 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in equity, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the Accounting policies A to K and the refated notes
1 to 11. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

= give a true andg fair view of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its profit for the
year then ended;
+« have been properly prepared in accardance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial staterments section of our report below. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to repaort in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

* the directors’ use of the going concern basis of acceunting in the preparation of the financial
statemeants is not appropriate; or

+ the directors have not disclosed in the financial statemenis any identified material uncerainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least iwelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i GP 2013 Ltd

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its envircnment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returmns; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions from the
requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of directors

Ag explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
ceagse operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.



3i GP 2013 Lid No. 08489159

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i GP 2013 Ltd

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taker on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at hitps://www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respoensibility to
anyone other than the company and the Company’s members as a body, for aur audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ErvsT o y()(/lftf"/’p

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

26 July 2018



3i GP 2013 Ltd

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year to 31 March 2018

No. 08489159

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Revenue 1 12,422,672 10,231,383
Operating expenses 2 (11,801,539) {9.718,7186)
Interest expense (1,231} (3,094)
Profit before tax 619,902 509,583
Income taxes 4 (67,788) -
Profit for the year 552,114 509,583
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 552,114 509,583
All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations.
Statement of changes in equity
for the year to 31 March 2018
Notes Issued Retained Total
capital earnings equity
€ € €
Balance at 1 April 2016 1 1,489,410 1,489,411
Profit for the year - 509,583 509,583
Dividend paid 5 - (1,480,000) (1,480,000}
Total equity at 31 March 2017 1 518,993 518,994
Balance at 1 April 2017 1 518,993 518,994
Profit for the year - 552,114 552,114
Dividend paid 5 - (1,010,000} (1,010,000)
1 61,107 61,108

Total equity at 31 March 2018

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 17 form an integral part of

these financial statements.



3i GP 2013 Ltd

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

No. 08489159

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivaients 128,664 518,984
Receivables ] 612 200
Total assets 129,276 519,184
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 4 (17,084) -
Total non-current {iabilities (17,084} -
Current liabilities
Payables 7 {51,084) (190}
Total current liabilities (51,084) (190}
Total liabilities (68,168) (190)
Net assets 61,108 518,994
Equity
Issued capital 8 1 1
Retained earnings 61,107 518,993
Total equity 61,108 518,994

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the hotes on pages 12 to 17 form an integral part of

these financial statements,

The financial statements have been approved and authoerised for issue by the Board of Directors.

Jasi Halai
Director

26 July 2018



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Statement of cash flows

for the year to 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue coliected 1 12,422,472 10,231,593
Bank interest paid (1,231) (3,094)
QOperating expenses paid (11,801,561) (9,720,013)
Net cash flow from operating activities 619,680 508,486
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid 5 (1,010,000) (1,480,000)
Net cash flow from financing activities (1,010,000) (1,480,000)
Net cash flow (380,320) (971,514)

Opening cash and cash equivalents 518,984 1,489,391
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations - 1,107

Closing cash and cash equivalents 128,664 518,984

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 17 form an integral part of
these financial statements.



3iGP 2013 Ld No, 08489158

Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB"} as adopted for use in the EU
and in accordance and compliance with the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements
with periods commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS9  Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Directors have performed an assessment and do not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16
will have a material impact on its results.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Company
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which
they specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been
consistently applied and apply to all years presented.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with and in
compliance with the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are presented in euros, the
functional currency of the Company, being the currency in which it operates and generates revenue
and incurs expenses.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and fiabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assels and liabilities that are not readily apparent from cther sources, Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency
transactions are transfated into euro at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange
differences arising are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Revenue recognition Revenue comprises of Priority Profit Share from various Limited
Partnerships, and is recognised as services are provided and it is probable that amounts will be repaid.

F Operating expenses Operating expenses are charged to the Statement of comprehensive
income an an accruals basis.

10



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

Accounting policies (continued)

G Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position
comprise cash at bank.

H Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy are stated
at their cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each Statement of financial position date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated based on expected discounted future cash flows. Any change in the
level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of comprehensive income.

I Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated
at fair value based on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services
received up to the Statement of financial position date.

J  Income taxes Income taxes represent the sum of the tax currently payable, and deferred tax. Tax
is charged or credited in the Statement of comprehensive income, except where it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. This may differ from the profit
included in the Statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit (‘temporary differences’), and is accounted for using the Statement of
financial position liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Statement of financial position date.

K Dividends Dividends are recognised through equity in the period in which they are approved and
declared.

11



3i GP 2013 Ltd

Notes to financial statements

1 Revenue

No. 08489159

2018 2017
€ €
Priority profit share 12,422,672 10,231,393
12,422,672 10,231,393
2 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Management fees 11,801,539 9,719,823
Foreign exchange gain - (1,107)
11,801,539 9,718,716

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €5,134 (2017: €4,914) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow
subsidiary.

3 Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are also Directors of fellow subsidiaries and receive remuneration from
3i pic. The table below shows the total emoluments received by the Directors from the fellow subsidiary.

2018 2017

€ €

Salaries and benefits 1,167,343 1,701,909
Bonuses 461,090 488,403
Compensation for loss of office 118,358 652,644
Share based payments 891,224 2,942,283
2,638,015 5,785,239

Emoluments, including share based payments, attributable to the highest paid Director were €1,534,728
(2017: €3,475,948).

The Directors do not receive any emoluments from the Company and do not believe it is practicable to
apportion the above amounts to their services as Directors of the Company. The Directors' services to
the Company do not occupy a significant amount of their time.

No Directors (2017: nit) of the Company accrued retirement benefits under the 3i Group Pension Plan,
a defined benefit contributory scheme.

12



3i GP 2013 Ltd

3 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No. 08489159

The Company's contribution to pension schemes on behalf of Directors was €nil for the year to 31 March

2018 (2017: €nil).

The Directors are granted options in shares of 3i. The fair value for the services provided fo the
Company by the Directors cannot be reliably estimated and as such no share-based payment charge

has been allocated to the Company.

4 Income taxes

2018 2017
€ €
Current tax
UK corporation tax 50,704 -
Deferred income taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 17,084 55,862
Utilisation of tax losses brought forward - (55,862)
Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive 67 788 }

income

Reconciliation of total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive income

The tax charge for the year is different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% (2017:

20%), and the differences are explained below:

2018 2017
€ €

Profit before tax 619,620 509,583
Profit before tax multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 19% (2017: 20%) 17,781 101,917
Effects of:
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax on losses (50,704) (83,382)
IIizgggmtlcm of previously unrecognised deferred tax on } (18,535)
Derecognition of previously recognised deferred tax on 711 _
losses
Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive 67788 )

income

13



3i GP 2013 Lid

income taxes (continued)

Deferred income taxes

Statement of

No. 08489159

Statement of

financial comprehensive
position income
2018 2018
€ €
Deferred income tax asset
Tax losses 17,084 524
Deferred income tax liabifity
Accrued priority profit share (34,168) 16,560
Deferred income tax asset / (liability) (17,084) -
Deferred income tax charge / (credit) in the statement
. - 17,084
of comprehensive income
Statement of Statement of
financial comprehensive
posltion income
2017 2017
€ €
Deferred income tax asset
Tax losses 17,608 (17,608)
Deferred income tax liability
Accrued priority profit share (17,608) 17,608

Deferred income tax asset / (liability)

Deferred income tax charge / (credit) in the statement
of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018 3i GP 2013 Ltd had tax losses carried forward of €17,379,559 for which no deferred
tax asset has been recognised. It is considered uncertain that there will be sufficient taxable profits in
the future against which the associated deferred tax assets can be offset and therefore the assels have
not been recognised.

The UK Government announced as part of the Finance (No 2) Act 2015, which received Royal Assent
on 18 November 2015, that the main rate of corporation tax rate would be reduced from 20% to 19%
from 1 April 2017. As part of the Finance Act 2016, a further reduction to 17% (effective from 1 April
2020) was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016 and received Royal Assent on 15 September
20186. This will affect the rate at which future UK cash tax will be payabie and the rate at which deferred
tax assets are expected to reverse. The deferred tax balances at 31 March 2018 have been calculated
based on these rates.

5 Dividends paid and declared

2018 2017

€ €

Declared and paid during the year 1,010,000 1,480,000
1,010,000 1,480,000

14



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

6 Receivables

2018 2017
€ €
Amounts owed by related parties 612 2060
612 200
7 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Amounts owed to related parties 380 190
UK Corporation tax payable 50,704 -
51,084 190
8 Issued capital
Authorised
number of Amount
shares €
Allotted and called up ordinary shares of 1 1
£1 each (€1.3786)
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 1 1

9 Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking Is 3i Holdings plc.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is 3i which is incorporated in the
United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Copies of its group financial statements, which
include the Company, are available from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

15



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 08489159

10 Related parties

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with refated
parties. Those transactions with Directors of the Company are disclosed in note 3. There are no other
key management personnel. Each of these categories of related parties and their impact on the financial
statements is detailed below.

Income from Limited Partnerships

The Limited Partnerships are related parties, being the entities for which the Company acts as General
Partner. Total revenue from Limited Partnerships, including the amount of accrued fees receivable at
the end of the year, is detailed below:

2018 2017
Priority Accrued at Priority  Accrued at
Profit Share  end of year Profit Share end of year
€ € € €
3i Ademas LP 1,000 - 1,000 -
3i Javelin H1a LP 50,276 - 55,596 -
3i Javelin Hi1b LP 33,510 - 37,062 -
3i Kiara C1 LP 494,388 - 497718 -
Ji Mito S1a LP 100 200 100 100
3i Mito S1b LP 100 200 100 100
3i PE 2013-16A LP 4,914,969 - 4,000,400 -
3i PE 2013-16B LP 211,655 - 174,028 -
3i PE 2013-16C LP 6,716,674 - 5,465,389 -
12,422,672 400 10,231,393 200

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Management Fees

Total fees paid to 3i plc, which is appointed by the Company to manage certain Limited Partnerships,
including the amount of accrued fees due at the end of the year, are detailed below:

2018 2017
Management  Accrued at Management  Accrued at
Fees in year end of year Fees in year end of year
€ € € €
Management fees paid to 3i plc 11,801,539 168 9,719,823 190

inciuded within receivables is an amount of €212 (2017: €nif) owed by 3i plc in respect of prepaid
management fees. Included within payables is an amount of €380 (2017: €190) owed ta 3i plc in respect
of accrued management fees.

16



3i Ademas LP

Annual report and accounts for the year to 31 March 2018
Registered number: SL17083

To be filed with 3i GP 2013 Ltd: company number 08489159
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3i Ademas LP SL17083

Strategic report

The Directors of 31 Investments pic (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Ademas LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of being an investor in the investment entity of
31 Eurgpartners Vb LP

The main key performance indicators are as follows

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 12,904,172 13,932,329
Net assets attributable to Partners 47,515,838 43,139,229

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows derived from proceeds from investments of €8,715,323. The Partnership also
distnbuted €8,527,463 to its Partners. Other contrnbuting factors to performance include the unrealised gains on
the value of the remaining investments of €12,905,958.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal nsks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

e Market price risk

e Concentration risk

e Credit risk

e  Liquidity risk

= Capital management



3 Ademas LP SL17083

Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management frame work whose pnmary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of nsk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated nsk policies are found in note 5

For and on behalf of 31 Investments plc

Jasi Hala
Director
[& May 2018

Registered office
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD



3i Ademas LP SL17083

Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members' report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 25 June 2014 and is domiciled in Scotland as a Scottish Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1807, The registered office of the Partnership is 50 Lothian Road, Festival
Square, Edinburgh, EH3 8WJ The General Partner of the Partnership 1s GP 2013 Ltd.

The Manager submits its report with the financial statements of the Partnership for the year to 31 March 2018

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008

The principal activity of the Partnership s to carry on the business of an investor in the investment entity of 3i
Europartners Vb LP.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow on financing.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the actvity of the Partnership 1n the short term.

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authonty

Going concemn

The Manager I1s satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeabie future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no materal events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there 1s no relevant audit information
of which the auditor 1s unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor 1s aware of such information

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 11.2 of the Lirmted Partnership Agreement (“LPA”) and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For apg on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
(> May 2018

Registered office
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and the
financial statements.

The Manager 15 responsible for preparing the Members’ report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union (“EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or foss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager 1s required to:

+» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless 1t is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the members

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements n preparng the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Ademas LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Ademas LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the
Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of financial
position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to L and the reiated notes 1 to 7. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
quahfying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of the Companies Act 2006 as apphied to qualifying partnerships. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the gualifying partnership's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report

to you where

« the members’ use of the going concemn basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

» the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified matenal uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
cancern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for 1ssue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6 other than

the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such matenal
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there 1s a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material musstatement of the other information If, based on the work
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Auditor’s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other infermation, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying

partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements,

« the strategic report and the members' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course

of the audit, we have identified no matenal misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinien:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsibie
for the preparation of the financial staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view , and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
contnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to iquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arnise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A, further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at https://www fro.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilites  This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

g(’u)’f X %w—rf cep
Maximiianc Bark {Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

(G way2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

€ €

Far value movements on investment entities 2 12,905,958 13,934,604

Gross investment return 12,905,958 13,934,604

Prionty profit share 6 (1,000) (1,000)

Operating expenses 1 (410) (238)

Net interest expense (376) (1,037}
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 12,904 172 13,932 329

year

All items n the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 18 form an integral part of these financial
statements
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

SL17083

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 100 4,034,405 39,104,724 43,139,225
Distributions to Partners - (4,034,405) (4,493,058) (8,527,463)
100 - 34,611,666 34,611,766
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 12,904,172 12,804,172
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 100 - 47,515,838 47,515,938
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Profit and
Contributions Loan account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 100 12,383,672 25172,395 37,556,167
Drawdown from partners 200,695 - 200,695
Distributions to Partners - (8,549.962) - (8,549,962)
100 4,034,405 25,172,395 29,206,900
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 13,932,329 13,932,329
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 100 4,034,405 39,104,724 43,139,226

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 18 form an integral part of these financial

statements

10
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

SL17083

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets

Investment n investment entities 2 47 512,348 43,135,115
Total non-current assets 47,512,348 43,135,115
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,788 4114
Total current assets 3,788 4,114
Total assets 47,516,136 43,139,229
Current liabilities

Payables 3 (198) -
Total current liabilities (198) _
Total liabilities {198) -
Net assets attributable to Partners 47,515,938 43,139,229
Represented by:

Capital contributions 100 100
Loan account - 4,034,405
Profit and loss accounts 47 515,838 39,104,724
Net assets attributable to Partners 47,515,938 43,139,229

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 18 form an integral part of these financial

statements

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director
|6 May 2018

11
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

SL17083

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash outflow to investment entity (186,598) (200,697)
Cash inflow from investment entity 8,715,323 8,555,353
Bank interest charged (376) {1,037)
Priority profit share paid (1,000) {1,000)
Operating expenses paid (212) (238)
Net cash flow from operating activities 8,627,137 8,352,381
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns - 200,695
Distributions paid (8,527,463) (8,549,962)
Net cash flow from financing activities (8,527,463) (8,349,267)
Change in cash and cash equivalents {326) 3,114
Opening cash and cash equivalents 4114 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,788 4,114

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 18 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006

New standards and interpretations not applied

The tASB has 1ssued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for perods beginning on or after

IFRSS Financial instruments S 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases o ) _ 1 January 2019

The Manager does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a material impact on its results

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the Note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader’'s understanding. These policies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented n euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capitai commitments, drawdowns and
distribubons are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources Actuai results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future penods If the revision affects both current and future percds. The most significant
technigues for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the far valuation of the investments in investment
entties The valuation methodologies for investments in iInvestment entities is disclosed in accounting policy L and
discussed in Note 2.

The Manager has conciuded that the Partnershup continues to meet the definttion of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolic Investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged

13
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Accounting policies {(continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership 1s the movement in the fair value of
its Investment in the investmeant entity.

F Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

G Priority profit share A pricrity profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

H Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank.

1 Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made In accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Pariners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction te the profit and loss accounts
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves It.

J  Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contnbutions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager

K Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

L Investments in investment entities The Manager has concluded that an entity meets the definition of
an mvestment entity where its strategic objective is of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment
management services to investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and
capital appreciation These entities are typically Limited Partnerships and other intermediary holding structures
which holds the Partnership's interest in invest underlying investment portfolio.

There are two type of Investment entities identified by the Manager (a) Investment entities that are controiled by
the Partnership, defined as ‘Investment entity - controlled subsidiaries’; and (b) Investment entities that are
managed by 3i Group plc but not controlled by the Partnership, defined as ‘Investment entity - other’. Control, as
defined by IFRS 10, is achieved when the Partnership is exposed, or has nghts, to vanable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the abillity to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Investments 1n investment entity subsidiaries are accounted for as financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss The fair value can increase or reduce from either cash flows to and from the investment entities or from
valuation movements in line with the Partnership’s valuation policy. The fair vatue of such entities is the fair value
of their portfolio iInvestments, subject to any appropriate adjustments, plus any other net assets held by the
investment entity subsidiary.

14
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Operating expenses

2018 2017

€ €

Tax compliance fees 410 238
410 238

The auditor's remuneration for the year €7,325 (2017: €7,600) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow subsidiary.

2 Investment in investment entities

Investment entity — other 2017 2016
€ €
Opening fair value 43,135,115 37,555,167
Net cash flows to and from investment entity — other (8,528,725) {8,354,656)
Fair value gain 12,905,958 13,934,604
Closing fair value of investment entity — other 47,512,348 43,135,115

Included within Net cash flows to and from investment entities is €8,715,323 (2017: €8,555,353) of proceeds
received relating to investment entity subsidiaries and included in Cash inflow from investment entities in the
Statement of cash flows.

All investments in investment entities are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

A 5% movement in the closing book value of investments in investment entities would have an impact of €2,375,617
(2017 €2,158,756).

The Partnership receives dividend income and proceeds from the sale of its underlying assets from its Investment
in investment entities. There are no significant restrictions on the ability to transfer funds from these entities to the
Partnership.

The Partnership provides support to its Investment in investment entities for the purchase of underlying assets and
ongoing cperations of the entities.

3 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Accrued expenses 198 -
198 -

4 Taxation
No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the

income and gains of the Partnership is payabie by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

15
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5 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, concentration nisk, credit risk, liquidity risk and capital management
nsk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due tc the performance of underlying investments

The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market price risk ansing from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’'s market risk 1s regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’'s management of price nsk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and dive stment decisions by the Manager The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to pnce risk 1s analysed in Note 2,

Concentration risk

The Partnership has one investment in 31 Europartners Vb LP. Concentration nisk is therefore mitigated as 3i
Europartners Vb LP seeks to diversify nsk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic
sector and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

31 Europartners Vb LP participates in five portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materiaily and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investment.
This investment 1s concentrated in the non-food discount retail industry and thus the Partnership's performance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely mpacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry

Credit risk

The Directors do not believe thal there is significant risk as amounts owed by Partnership’s debtors are due from
other Group entities and are repayable on demand.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the nsk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent hquidity nsk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Pariners As at 31 March 2018, the
Partnership has undrawn commitments of €1,666,684 (2017 €1,853,282) which is callable by the Manager in
accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership’s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €47,512,348 (2017; €43,135,115) in investments that it considered to be lliquid. The Manager
manages this nisk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities incurred
by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they falf due.

16
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5 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date.

Liabilities less Liabilities between Liabilities more than

As at 31 March 2018 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
€ € € €

Other payables and accrued
expenses 198 - - 198
198 - - 198

As at 31 March 2017

Cther payables and accrued
expenses - - - -

The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity groupings.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributicns, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €47,515,938 (2017: €43,139,229) at the reporting date. There are nc externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additionat contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

17
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6 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a prionty profit share to the General Partner The General Partner is entitted to receive a
prionty profit share equal to €1,000 per annum.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating deci sions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 1,000 1,000

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

Dunng the year a number of recharged costs were made between the Partnership and 31 plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged cost 212 238

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

7 Controlling party
31 Group plc is the ultimate parent undertaking of the partnership and 1s also the controling party of the Manager

and the General Partner of the Partnership. Copies of the 3| financial statements which include the Partnership are
available from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD
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Annual report and accounts for the year to 31 March 2018
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Javelin H1a LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 7,722 (2.088,127)
Net assets attributabie to Partners 6,932,306 6,824,584

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial
statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investment of $109,940. The Partnership did not make
any distributions to Partners in the year.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's nsk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncerfainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

«  Market price risk

«  Currency risk

+ Concentration risk

s Credtnsk

s Liquidity risk

« Interest rate risk

« (Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns te investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor
the management of risk at & Partnership level. Details of the Partnership's associated risk policies are found in
note 5.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

A June 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members' report and the financial
statements of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018,

Background and general information

The Patnership was established on 11 October 2013 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited
Partnership under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street,
London, SW1E 5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i GP 2013 LTD. The Designated Limited Partner
of the Partnership is 3i 2004 GmbH & Co KG.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise
individual investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Parinership in the short term.
Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10

Manager

The Manager has respensibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concem

The Manager intends to drawdown sufficient funds from the Partners to cover any ongoing Partnership expenses
as per the Limited Partnership Agreement (“LPA")} to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on
a geing concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the batance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditor is unaware; and (b} it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was appointed as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with ctause 11.6
of the LPA and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006

For,and on behalf of 3i Investments pic

Jasi Halai
Director

72 June 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1IE 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union (“EU") and applicable law. Under law the
Manager must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adepted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager I1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positicn of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have
complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Javelin H1a LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Javelin H1a LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to L and the related notes 1 fo 7. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and intemational
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financiai statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with intermational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK}) and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
inciuding the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the I1SAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

e the members’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

+ the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying parinership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set cut on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Qur apinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

+ the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In hght of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have identified no materiai misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

¢ certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the members determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realishc altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at hitps://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit werk has been undertaken so
that we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

c(rn‘z/cf K/vaj LLP
Maximilianc Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

2 8 June 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15732

Notes 2018 2017

$ $

Unrealised profits/(losses)} on the revaluation of investments 2 109,940 (1,968,709)
Gross investment return 109,940 (1,968,709}
Priority profit share 6 {60,750} {60,750)
Qperating expenses 1 (41,828) (59,067}
Net interest income 483 399
Exchange movements (123) -
Profit/{loss) and Total comprehensive income for the year 7,722 {2,088,127)

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15732

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
$ $ $ $
Opening balance of Partners’
accounts 200 11,465,915 {4,641,531) 6,824,584
Drawdowns from Partners - 100,000 - 100,000
200 11,565,915 (4,641,531} 6,924,584
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 7,722 7,722
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 200 11,565,915 (4,633,809) 6,932,306
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
$ $ $ $
Opening balance of Partners'
accounts 200 11,465,915 (2,553,404) 8,912,711
200 11,465,915 (2,553,404} 8,912,711
Loss and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - (2,088,127} (2,088,127)
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 200 11,465,915 (4,641,531) 6,824,584

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LP015732

Notes 2018 2017
Assets $ $
Non-current assets
Investments 2
- Unquoated investments 6,942 099 6,832,159
Total non-current assets 6,942,099 6,832,159
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,743 7,608
Total current assets 14,743 7,608
Total assets 6,956,842 6,839,767
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables 3 {24,536) (15,183)
Total current liabilities (24,536) {15,183)
Total liabilities (24,536) {15,183)
Net assets attributable to Partners 6,932,306 6,824,584
Represented by:
Capital contributions 200 200
Loan account 11,565,915 11,465,915
Profit and loss accounts {4,633,809) {4,641531)
Total attributable to Partners 6,932,306 6,824 584

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

2 € June 2018

11
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP0O15732

Notes 2018 2017
$ $

Cash flow from operating activities
Bank interest received 483 399
Priority profit share paid (60,750} (60,750)
Operating expenses paid (32,598) (51,074)
Net cash flow from operating activities (92,865) (111,425)

Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns received 100,000 -
Net cash flow from financing activities 100,000 -
Change in cash and cash equivalents 7.135 {111,425)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 7,608 119,033
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,743 7,608

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 16 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership {Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the foliowing standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with
periods commencing o or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS 9 " Financial instruments o 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
(FRS16  feases 1 January 2019

The Manager has petformed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a
material impact on its resuits.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note fo which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied
and apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in US dollars, the
functional currency of the Partnership, being the cumrency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns
and distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amaunts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuaton of the investments. The valuation
methodologies for investments arse disclosed in agcounting policies E and discussed in note 2.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investars for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
transiated into US dollars at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency
fransactions are fransfated into US doliars at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange
differences arising are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at
the reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including
both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the International Private
Equity and Venture Capital ("IPEV") valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information
available at the time of measurement.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regutar basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as parnt of investment
additions during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan,
the Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the
assessment going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued
interest which has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an
equal reduction in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above
the fair value of the loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on
the revaluation of an investment, converted into US dollars using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation
date.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

|. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attnbutable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into US dollars using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

ll. Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into US dollars using the
exchange rates in force at the reporting date.

Ill. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been estabhshed, converted into US dollars using
the exchange rates in force when such nghts are established.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal cutstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into US dollars using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administratton
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accrual basis.

H  Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share s treated as an
expense In the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual
obligation with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J  Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted
for as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss
accounts. A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in
commitments represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equily as
the timing and amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and
loan amounts are recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Payables Liabilites, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

14
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Operating expenses

2018 2017

$ $

Audit fees 6,822 4,688
Tax compfiance expenses 17,678 37,421
Administrative expenses 17,328 16,958
41,828 59,067

2 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of $nil (2017: $nil) and loans of $6,942,099 (2017:
$6,832,159).

The holding period of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than cne year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the
following hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Quoted equity instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments

that are observable sither directly {1.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observabie market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair vaiue
hierarchy as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $

Unquoted investments - - 6,942,099 5,942,099
- - 6,942,099 6,942,099

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 4 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $

Unquoted investments - - 6,822,159 6,832,159
Total - - 6,832,159 6,832,159

15
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2 Investments (continued)

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment's characteristics change during the
financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
level 3 in the pericd (2017: nil).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

$ $

Opening fair value 6,832,159 8,800,868
Fair value movement 109,940 (1.968,709)
Closing fair value 6,942,099 6,832,159

A net profit of $109,940 (2017: loss of $1,968,709) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
unrealised profits/(losses) on the revaluation of investments from level 3 assets.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as descnbed in accounting policy
E Of investments held at 31 March 2018 and classified as Level 3, 100% (2017: 100%) were valued using a
muitiple of earnings.

The fair values of alf other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of eamings-based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then
adjusted for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted
average multiple used when valuing the portfolio was 10.0x {2017: 10.0x). If the muitiple used to value each
unquoted investment valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%, the impact on
the investment portfolio would be a decrease of 30 (2017: $135,480) or 0% (2017: 1.99%). If the multipie
increased by 5% then the impact on the investment portfolio would be an increase of $0 (2017: $135,840) or 0%
(2017: 1.99%).

3  Payables
2018 2017
$ $
Audit fee 6,853 5,632
Tax compliance expenses 17.683 9,551
24,536 15,183

4  Taxation
No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the

income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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5 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, curency nsk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to USD/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had USD strengthened /
weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relaticn to these currencies, with all other variables held constant, net assets
attributable to Partners would have increased / decreased respectively by the amounts shown in the following
table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 $ $ $
GBP 340 649 931
340 649 931
As at 31 March 2017 $ $ $
GBP 268 512 735
268 512 735

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership's assets and liabilites af the year end. The Partnership’s totaf assets were $6,956,842
(2017: $6,839,767) and the total liabilities were $24,536 (2017: $15,183).

% of total Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 29.1% 37.1%
29.1% 371%

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion cf investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in one portfolic investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the investment.

17



31 Javelin H1a LP LP015732

5 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit nsk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the wvaluation process described in note 2. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment
portfolio is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not
past due it is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be
made in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio
company has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit nsk is included within the
overall assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liguid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available
for both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds
from investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of $nil (2017: $nil) which is
callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA. However, in accordance with the LPA, the Manager can cail
from Partners for operational expenses.

The Partnership’s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held $6,942,099 (2017: $6,832,159) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The Manager
manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilites
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

The foliowing table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
less than 1 between  more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1-5years years Total
$ $ $ $
Other payables and accrued expenses 24,536 - - 24,536
24 536 - - 24,536
As at 31 March 2017
Other payables and accrued expenses 15,183 - - 15,183
15,183 - - 15,183

The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are
in fixed rate loans.

18



3i Javelin Hla LP LPC15732

5 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled $6,932,306 (2017: $6,824,584) at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional cantributians from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for aperating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

6 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a prority profit share to the General Partner. During an accounting period, the General
Partner is entitied to receive a priority profit share equal to 0.50% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Pariner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. In respect of each accounting period commencing after 8 90% realisation, the priority
profit share is equal to 0.25% of the aggregate acquisition cost, to the extent the investment has not been the
subject of a full realisation at the beginning of such accounting penod.

The Designated Limited Partner shall be entitled to an amount up to maximum of $2,000 based on its portion of
the Partnership's profit. This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitments in
the Partnership.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating
decisions of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of
3i and the Designated Limited Partner is a whoily owned subsidiary of 3i Deutschiand GmbH, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income $ $
Priority profit share 60,750 60,750

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income $ $
Recharged costs 26,879 54,378
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the vear 17,683 9,551

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

7 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Mito S1a LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 9,908,477 6,789,775
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,490,131 6,106,710

Net assets attnbutable to Partners 28,903,224 20,413,093

Total attributable to Partners 33,177,799 23,269,322

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €9,947,257. The Partnership did not make
any distributions to Partners in the year.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's nsk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

o  Market price risk

s  Currency risk

« Concentration risk

«  Liquidity risk

*  Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership's performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted retums to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 7.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments pic

Jasi Halai
Director

23 june 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members' present the Members' report on the Partnership for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 25 March 2014 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i GP 2013 Ltd and the Designated Limited Partner is 3i 2004
GmbH & Co KG.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership 1s to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
tnvestments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts 1s given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager 1s authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concem

The Manager has performed an assessment on the Partnership’s ability to remain a going concem and concludes
there are sufficient resources available to cover the Partnerships obligations and that it can continue to operate for
the foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements
on a going concem basis,

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: {a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor 1s unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken tc make iiself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst and Young LLP was appointed as auditor of the Partnership in accerdance with clause 11.7
of the Limited Partnership Agreement (“LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For apd on behalf of 3i investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

ZR June 2018

Registered office
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members' report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards (*IFRS") as adopted by the European Union (*EU”) and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Parinership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerstups by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Mitc S1a LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Mito S1a LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the
Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of financial
paosition, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to M and the related notes 1 to 9. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our apinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unicn; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our respansibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financiai statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

« the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

+« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying

partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statemenis are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

» the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment cbtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to repert to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership's ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic altermative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at https.//www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to gualifying partnerships. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to themin an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
apinions we have formed.

£ i/L L YW; cLp
Maximiliano Bark (Senior statulory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

2. § June, 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfolio income 1 - 265,831
Unrealised profits on the revaiuation of investments 3 9,547,257 6,545,239
Gross investment return 9,047 257 6,811,070
Priority profit share 8 (100) (118)
Operating expenses 2 (38,755) (20,224)
Net interest expense (2) (963)
Exchange movements 77 -
Profit and '_I'ota‘l comprehensive income for the year 9.008 477 6.789.775
before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 5 (1,418,348) (683,085)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 8,490,131 6,106,710

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP015977

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of 200 ; 20,412,893 20,413,093
Partners' accounts
200 - 20,412,893 20,413,093
?roﬁt and Total comprehensive i i 8,490,131 8.490.131
income for the year
Closing balance of
Partners’ accounts 200 - 28,903,024 28,903,224
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
i f
Opening balance o 200 11,002,913 15,004,476 26,187,589
Partners’ accounts
Distributions to Partners - {11,092,913) (788,293) {11,881,206)
200 - 14,306,183 14,306,383
_Proﬁt and Total comprehensive . - 6,106,710 6,106,710
income for the year
i f
Closing balance o 200 ) 20,412,893 20,413,093

Partners’ accounts

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 3

- Quoted investments 33,221,488 23,274,231
Total non-current assets 33,221,488 23,274,231
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 693 694
Total current assets 693 694
Total assets 33,222,181 23,274,925
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable 5 {4,274,575) (2,856,229)
Total non-current liabilities (4.274,575) (2,856,229)
Current liabilities
Payables 4 (44,382) (5,603)
Total current liabilities (44,382) (5,603)
Total liabilities (4,318,957) {2,861,832)
Net assets attributable to Partners 28,903,224 20,413,093
Represented by:
Capital contributions 200 200
Profit and loss accounts 28,903,024 20,412,893
Net assets attributable to Partners 28,903,224 20,413,093
Carried interest ailocation 4,274 575 2,856,229
Total attributable to Partners 33,177,799 23,269,322

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For apd on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

2% June 2018

"
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15977

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Cash flow from operating activities

Proceeds from investments - 11,256,599
Pertfoiio income received - 627,362
Bank interest paid (1) (953)
Priority profit share paid - (218)
Operating expenses paid - {21,044)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1) 11,861,746
Cash flow from financing activities

Distributions paid - (11,881,206}
Net cash flow from financing activities - (11,881,206)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (1) (19,460)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 694 20,154
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 693 694

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with JFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with pericds
commencing on or after the following dates:

i i 7Efiférctiv§:aifor ﬁeﬁpé§ p{gihniﬁg on or after

IFRS9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 _ Leases .. 1 January 2019

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a
materal impact on its results.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader’s understanding. These policies hava been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and iiabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, ar in the period
of the revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies beiow.

The most significant estimates for the Parinership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and discussed in note
3. The methodolagy for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy M.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold af their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carmied interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolio investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment partfolio is itself a significant accaunting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carmied interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 5.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfclio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differernices arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital (“IPEV") valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information available at the
time of measurement.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

[. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

Il. Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into euros using the exchange rates
in force at the reporting date.

{ll. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference 1o the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted inte euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

I Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term depasits held at call with financial institutions.

J  Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions o Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and foan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recegnised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

L Payables Liabiiities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

M Carried interest 'n accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

Anincrease in the carried interest due to the Foundaer Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest resuits from a
decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

15
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Portfolio income
2018 2017
€ €
interest income - 265,831
- 265,831
2 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 5,476 4,532
Fund administration expenses 14,679 15,452
Portfolio related expenses 18,400 -
Other expenses 200 1,193
38,755 21177
3 Investments
Quoted Ungquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2017 23,274,231 - 23,274,231
Fair value gain 9,947,257 - 9,947,257
Fair value at 31 March 2018 33,221,488 - 33,221,488
Quoted Unguoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2016 - 28,347,122 28,347,122
Transfer from Level 3 1o Level 1 28,347 122 (28,347,122) -

Additions during the year — cash
Disposals, repayments and write-offs
Fair vaiue gain

(11,618,130)
6,545,239

(11,618,130)
6,545,239

Fair value at 31 March 2017

23,274,231

23,274,231

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €nil (2017: €nil) and loans of €nil {2017: €nil}.

The holding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold

within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following

hierarchy:

16
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3 Investments (continued)

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices {unadjusted) from active markets Quoted equity instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted pnces included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments

that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
incirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market No Level 3 financiai instruments

data

LPO15977

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
2018 2018 2018 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Quoted investments 33,221,488 - - 33,221,488
33,221,488 - - 33,221,488
2017 2017 2017 017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Quoted investments 23,274,231 - - 23,274,231
23,274,231 - - 23,274,231

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 2 or Level 3 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment’s characteristics change during the financial
period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate
level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of level 3 in the

vear (2017: €28,347,122).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value - 28,347,122
Fair value movement - -
Disposals, repayments and write-offs - -
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 - {28,347 ,122)

Closing fair value -

A net profit of €9,947,257 (2017: €6,811,070) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as portfolio

income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy

E. No investments held at 31 March 2018 are classified as Level 3.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial

pasition.
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4 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 10,742 5,265
Priority profit share 200 100
Administration expenses 14,679 -
Partfolio related expenses 18,400 -
Other Payables 361 238
44,382 5,603
5 Carried interest payable
2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 2,856,229 2,173,164
Carried interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 1,418,346 683,065
4,274,575 2,856,229
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 4,274,575 2,856,229

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accruat at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €4,531,050.

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€209,045 increase in carried interest payable.

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all individual assets in the underying investment portfolio would result in a
€209,045 decrease in carried interest payable.

6 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

7 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, liquidity rnsk and capital
management risk.

Market price risk

Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership's market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’'s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Fartnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 3.
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency transtation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had EUR strengthened /
weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant, net assets
attributable to Partners would have increased / decreased respectively by the amounts shown in the following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP 519 990 1,421
519 880 1,421
As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 251 479 687
251 479 687

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership's assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership's total assets were €33,222,181
(2017: €23,274,925) and the total liabilities (including accrual for carried interest} were €4,318,957 (2017:
€2,861,832).

% of total Partnership liabilities 20138 2017
GBP 0.25% 0.20%
0.25% 0.20%

99.75% (2017 99.80%) of the Partnership's liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in one portfolio investment and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the performance of the investment.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
invesiment. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €nil {2017: €nil). However, in
accordance with the LPA, the Manager can call from Partners for operational expenses.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €nif (2017: €nil) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The Manager manages this risk
by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities incurred by the operating
activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due. Liabilities arising from Carried interest
payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met, which ensures that sufficient assets
will be available to meet them (see accounting policy M).
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The following table analyses the Partrership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Liahilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1-5 years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 44,382 - - 44,382
44,382 - - 44,382

As at 31 March 2017

Other payables and accrued expenses 5,603 - - 5,603
5,603 - - 5,603

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €4,274,575 (31 March 2017: €2 856,229} has no stated matunty
as carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the
timing of when the investments wiil be sold. The Partnership has nc other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity
groupings,

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €28,903,224 (2017: €20,413,093) at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. Ne
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

8 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amcunts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 5.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. The General Partner is entitled to receive a
priority profit share of €100 per annum.

The Designated Limited Partner shall be entitied to an amount up to maximum of €2,600 based on its portion of
the Partnership’s profit. This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitments in the
Partnership.
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8 Related parties (continued)

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings pic, a subsidiary of 3i. The
Designated Limited Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Deutschiand GmbH, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 100 118
Statement of financiat position
Accrued at the end of the year 200 100

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 33,305 156,669
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 33,517 238

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

9 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager’) present their strategic report on 3i Javelin H1b LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc ("3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 8,540 {1,374,572)
Net assets attributable to Partners 4,625,527 4,561,987

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial
statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investment of $73,293. The Partnership did not make
any distributions to Partners in the year.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the foilowing:

*«  Market price nsk

» Currency risk

« Concentration risk

s  Credit risk

¢ Liguidity risk

+ Interest rate risk

=  Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’'s performance cobjectives, being to
generate atiractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor
the management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in
note 5.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

28 June 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members' report and the financial
statements of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 11 October 2013 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited
Partnership under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership 1s 16 Palace Street,
London, SW1E 5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i GP 2013 LTD. The Designated Limited Partner
of the Partnership 1s 3i 2004 GmbH & Co KG.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Cquity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise
individual investrnents in appropriate circurmnstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnerstip and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concem

The Manager intends to drawdown sufficient funds from the Partners to cover any ongoing Partnership expenses
as per the Limited Partnership Agreement (*LPA") to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on
a going concemn basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.



3i Javelin H1b LP LPO15733

Members’ report

Disclosure of information tc auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditor is unaware; and {b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was appointed as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with clause 11.6
of the LPA and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

ZBJune 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 54D
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager t¢ prepare the Strategic report, Members' report and
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union {"EU”) and applicable law. Under law the
Manager must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentiy;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008, The
Manager is atso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have
complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Javelin H1b LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Javelin H1b LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to L and the related notes 1 to 7. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurapean Union.

In our cpinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and ofits
profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accardance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
cpinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nathing to repart in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs [UK) require us to
report to you where:
+ the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or
« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership's ability to continue to adopt the gaing
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the ather information.

Our copinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we dao not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such materiai
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

= the strategic report and the members' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we have identified no material rmisstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members’ responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at hitps://iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of

Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the qualifying partnership’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for cur audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

2.8 june 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP015733

Notes 2018 2017

$ $

Unrealised profits/(losses) on the revaluation of investments 2 73,293 (1,312,472)
Gross investment return 73,293 (1,312,472)
Priority profit share . 5] {40,500) (40,500)
Operating expenses 1 (24,429} {21,867)
Net interest income 299 267
Exchange movements (123} -
Profit/(loss) and Total comprehensive income for the year 8,540 (1,374,572)

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
$ $ $ $
Opening balance of Partners’
accounts 200 7,664,915 (3,103,128) 4,561,987
Drawdowns from Partners - 55,000 - 55,000
200 7,719915 (3,103,128) 4,616,987
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 8,540 8,540
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 200 7,719,915 (3.094,588) 4,625,527
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
$ $ $ $
Opening balance of Partners’
accounts 200 7,664,915 {1,728,556) 5,936,559
200 7,664,915 (1,728,556) 5,936,559
Loss and Total comprehensive
incorne for the year - - (1,374,572) (1,374.572)
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 200 7,664 915 (3,103,128) 4,561,987

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these
financial statements.

10
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LP015733

Notes 2018 2017
Assets $ $
Non-current assets
Investments 2
- Unquoted investments 4,628,067 4,554,774
Total non-current assets 4,628,067 4,654,774
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,596 13,006
Total current assets 4 596 13,096
Total assets 4,632,663 4,567,870
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables 3 (7,136) (5,883)
Total current liahilities (7,136) {5,883)
Total liabilities (7,136) (5,883}
Net assets attributable to Partners 4,625,527 4,561,987
Represented by:
Capital contributions 200 200
Loan account 7,719,915 7,664,915
Profit and loss accounts {3,094,588) {3,103,128)
Net assets attributable to Partners 4,625,527 4,561,987

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For apd on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

2% June 2018

T
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

$ $

Cash flow from operating activities
Bank interest received 299 267
Priority profit share paid (40,500} {40,500)
Operating expenses paid (23,299) (23,174)
Net cash flow from operating activities {63,500) (63,407)
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns received 55,000 -
Net cash flow from financing activities 55,000 -
Change in cash and cash equivalents {8,500) (63,407}
Opening cash and cash equivalents 13,096 76,503
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,596 13,096

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 14 and the notes on pages 15 to 19 form an integral part of these

financial statements.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the Intemnational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership {Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with
periods commencing on or after the following dates:

o - ) - Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS9  Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2_019

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a
maierial impact on its results.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
acceunts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied
and apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis and are presented in US dollars, the
functional currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns
and distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
periad of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate 1o the fair valuation of the investments. The valuation
methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and discussed in note 2.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into US dollars at the ciosing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency
transactions are transiated into US dollars at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange
differences arising are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which reguire the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given, Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at
the reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including
both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the Intemational Private
Equity and Venture Capital (“IPEV”) valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information
available at the time of measurement.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment
additions during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan,
the Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the
assessment going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitaiisation of accrued
interest which has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an
equal reduction in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above
the fair value of the loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on
the revaluation of an investment, converted into US dollars using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation
date.

Loans and equity are valued together to denve the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, anaiysed into
the following components:

|. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the rapayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into US dollars using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

Il. Unrealised profits or [osses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying vaiue of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into US dollars using the
exchange rates in force at the reporting date.

. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the retum from individual investments. it is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.
- Dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established, converted into US dollars using
the exchange rates in force when such rights are established.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into US dollars using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accrual basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an
expense in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual
obligation with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted
for as a deduction to the toan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deducticn to the profit and (oss
accounts. A drstribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in
commitments represented by capitai contnbutions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as
the timing and amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and
loan amounts are recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Payables Liabilties, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Operating expenses

2018 2017

$ $

Audit fees 6,824 4,688
Administrative expenses 17,327 16,958
Tax compliance expenses 278 221
24,429 21,867

2 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of $nil (2017: $nil) and loans of $4,628,067 (2017:
$4,554,774).

The holding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than cne year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the
following hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No quoted equity instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 No Levei 2 financial instruments

that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $

Ungquoted investments - - 4,628,067 4,628,067
Total - - 4,628,067 4,628,067
2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $

Unquoted investments - - 4,554,774 4,554 774
Total - - 4,554,774 4 554 774
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2 Investments {continued)

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment's characteristics change during the
financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
level 3 in the period (2017: nil).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

$ $

Opening fair value 4 554,774 5,867,246
Fair value movement 73,293 (1,312,472}
Closing fair value 4,628,067 4,554 774

A net profit of $73,293 (2017: loss of $1,312,472) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2018 and classified as Level 3, 100% {2017:100%) were valued using a
multiple of earmings.

The fair values of al! other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple 15 the main assumption applied in a multiple of eamings-based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction muitiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then
adjusted for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted
average multiple used when valuing the portfolio was 10.0x {(2017: 10.0x}. If the multiple used to value each
unguoted investment valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%, the impact on
the investment portfolic would be a decrease of $0 (2017: $90,560) or 0% (2017. 1.99%). If the muitiple
increased by 5% then the impact on the investment portfolio would be an increase of $0 (2017: $90,560) or 0%
(2017: 1.99%).

3 Payables
2018 2017
$ $
Audit fee 6,853 5,632
Tax compliance expenses 283 251
7.136 5,883

4  Taxation
No provision far taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the

income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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5 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration nsk, credit risk, hquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk ansing from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership's market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership's management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in Note 2.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fiuctuations in foreign currency transiation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to USD/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had USD strengthened /
weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant, net assets
aftributable to Partners would have increased / decreased respectively by the amounts shown in ihe following
table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 $ $ $
GBP 340 649 931
340 649 a31
As at 31 March 2017 $ $ $
GBP 268 512 735
268 512 735

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure 1o foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assefs were $4,632,663
(2017: $4,567,870) and the total liabilities were $7,136 (2017: $5,883).

% of total Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 100.0% 95.7%
100.0% 95.7%

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in one portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate retum of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the investment.
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5 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership's investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 2. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment
portfolio is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not
past due it is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be
made In accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio
company has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the
overall assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available
for both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds
from investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of $nil (2017: $nil} which is
callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA. However, in accordance with the LPA, the Manager can call
from Partners for operational expenses.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held $4,628,067 (2017: $4,554,774) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The Manager
manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, cther liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
penod at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1- 5 years years Total
$ $ $ $
Other payables and accrued expenses 7,136 - - 7,136
7,136 - - 7.136

As at 31 March 2017

Other payables and accrued expenses 5,883 - - 5,883
5,883 - - 5,883

The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are
in fixed rate loans.
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5 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled $4,625,527 (2017: $4,561,987) at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

6 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During an accounting pericd, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 0.50% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. In respect of each accounting period commencing after a 90% realisation, the priority
profit share is equal to 0.25% of the aggregate acquisition cost, to the extent the investment has not been the
subject of a full realisation at the beginning of such accounting period.

The Designated Limited Partner shall be entitled to an amount up to maximum of $2,000 based on its portion of
the Partnership’s profit. This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitments in
the Partnership.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating
decisions of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of
3i and the Designated Limited Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Deutschland GmbH, a subsidiary of 3.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income $ $
Priority profit share 40,500 40,500

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income $ $
Recharged costs 17,578 17,180
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 283 251

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

7  Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investrnents ple (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 31 PE 2013-16A LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018,

Results and business review

The principal achvity of the Partnership 1s to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 141,752,273 102,384,082
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year 117,117,616 84,306,102

Net assets attrnbutable to Partners 551,909,549 571,701,641

Total attnbutable to Pariners 609,376,672 604,534,107

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows derived from portfolio income of €5,587,605 and proceeds from investments of
€137,072,633 Other contributing factors to performance include the unrealised gains on the value of the remaining
investments of €53,882,285

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term
Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s nsk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following

»  Market price risk

» Currency risk

=  Concentration risk

»  Credit risk

»  Liquidity nsk

= Interest rate risk

»  Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted retumns to investors

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 8.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

asi Halai
Director

[ may 2018

Registered office
16 Palace Street
London

SWHE 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 12 July 2013 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1807 The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD The General Partner of the Partnership 1s 3i GP 2013 Ltd. The Designated Limited Partner 1s 31 2004 GmbH
& Co.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{(Accounts) Regulations 2008

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regiens in which 31 invests worldwide

The Partnership I1s ho longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individuat
investments in appropriate circumstances

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts 1s given in the Statement of changes in Pariners’ accounts on
page 10

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its i nvestment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authonity

Going concern

The Manager 1s satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 menths For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there s no relevant audit information
of which the auditor 1s unaware, and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make tself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such informatian.

Auditor

During the year, Ernst &Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 11.3 of the Limited Partnership Agreement (“LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of 3i investments pic

Jasi Halai
Director

(b May 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWH1E 54D
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Members' report, Strategic report and the
financial statements

The Manager 1s responsible for preparing the Members' report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {“IFRS"} as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Managar Is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any materiai
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis unless it is inappropnate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and expiain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statemen ts comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularites. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i PE 2013-16A LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 31 PE 2013-16A LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to M and the related notes 1 to 11. The
financial reporting framewark that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and tnternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the gualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended,

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

« have been prepared mn accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our cpinion .

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for nc other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying parinership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Conclusions reiafing to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs {UK) require us to report

to you where:

= the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified matenal uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concem basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information :
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our audror's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information 15 materially inconsistent with the financial statements or aur
knowiedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a matenal
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
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Auditor’s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared I1s consistent with the financial statements;

» the strategic report and the members' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable tegai
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowiedge and understanding of the qualfying partnership and its environment obtained in the course

of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to repart to you If, in our opinion.

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 8, the members are responsibie

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view , and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless members either intend to hquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaterent when it exists Misstatements can anse from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements I1s located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at hitps.//iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Erusf 2 Gowp erp
Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

’ 6 May 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfalio tncome 1 26,075,220 12,139,651
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 53,882,285 95,332,007
Realised profits/(losses) over value on the disposal of 2 66,822,227 {8,027)
investments
Gross investment return 146,779,732 107,463,631
Priority profit share 9 (4,914,969) (4,000,596)
Deal related costis {111,8958) (1,079,694)
Operating expenses 3 (3) (29)
Net interest {expense)/income (399) 1,084
Exchange movements {(130) (314)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for 141,752,273 102,384,082
the year before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 6 (24,634 657) (18,077,980)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 117,117,616 84,306,102

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 23 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15627

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 55,850 408,958,193 162,687,498 571,701,641
Crawdowns from Partners - 5,030,375 - 5,030,375
Distributions to Partners - (141,940,083) - (141,840,083)
55,950 272,048,485 162,687,498 434,791,933
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 117,117,616 117,117 616
Closing balance of
Partners’ accounts 55,950 272,048,485 279,805,114 551,909,549
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 55,950 445 903,103 78,381,396 524,340,449
Drawdowns from Partners - 30,541,500 - 30,541,500
Distributions ta Partners - (67,486,410) - (67,486,410)
55,950 408,958,193 78,381,396 487,395,539
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 84,306,102 84,306,102
Closing balance of
Partners’ accounts 55,950 408,958,193 162,687,498 571,701,641

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 23 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LPO15627

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 4

- Quoted investments 130,205,426 91,219,036

- Unquoted investments 469,849,088 513,295,675
Total non-current assets 600,054,514 604,514,711
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 146,287 19,396
Receivables 5 9,175,871 -
Total current assets 9,322,158 19,396
Total assets 609,376,672 604,534,107
Liabitities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable & (57,467,123) (32,832,466)
Total non-current liabilities {57,467,123) {32,832 466)
Total liabilities (57,467,123) {32,832,466)
Net assets attributable to Partners 551,909,549 571,701,641
Represented by:
Capital contributions 55,850 55,950
Loan account 272,048 485 408,958,193
Profit and loss accounts 279,805,114 162,687,498
Net assets attributable to Partners 551,909,549 571,701,641
Carried interest allocation 57,467,123 32,832,466
Total attributable to Partners 609,376,672 604,534 107

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 tc 23 form an integral part of these financial

statements

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

l'o May 2018
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31 PE 2013-16A LP

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15627

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 {596,080) {29,456,029)
Preceeds from investments 137,072,533 68,297,005
Deal related costs paid {111,958) (1,079,694)
Portfolio income received 5,687,605 3,179,918
Bank Interest received 10 2,565
Bank interest paid (409) {1,481)
Priority profit share paid {4.914,969) {4,000,596)
Operating expenses paid (3 (29)
Net cash flow from operating activities 137,036,729 36,941,659

Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 5,030,375 30,541,500
Distributions paid (141,940,083) (67,486,410}
Net cash flow from financing activities (136,909,708) (36,944,910)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 127,021 (3,251)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 19,396 22,961
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (130} (314)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 146,287 19,396

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 23 form an integral part of these financial

statements
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘|ASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership {Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commengcing on or after the following dates-

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS 9 " Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
{IFRS 16 Leases 1 Jdanuary 2018

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 wil have a
material impact on its results

B Basis of preparation The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Parinership, being the cumency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distnbutions are denominated.

€ Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estmates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects anly that period, or in the penod
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future perieds The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and discussed in note
4. The methodclogy for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy M.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolio Investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 6.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and labilittes denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences ansing are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised an their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which reguire the delivery or settiement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment 1s quoted on an active sto ck market. Unquoted investments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the Internatioral Private Equity and
Venture Capital (“IPEV") valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information available at the
time of measurement

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and incfuded
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
dunng the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” Is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as addttions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the far value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in note 1.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the farr value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same tme, and cannot be traded separately To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value 1s then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investrment income, analysed into
the following components:

| Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attnbutable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting peniod,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

Il.  Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
Investments between the start and end of the accounting penod converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at the reperting date.

Ill.  Portfolio ncome is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments It 1s recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

14



3i PE 2013-16A LP LPO15627

Accounting policies (continued)

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Fartner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J  Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made In accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distnbutions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance s repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and [oan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
armount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any indication
of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
discounted future cash flows and any changes in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

M Carried interest [n accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participatian for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest 1s accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual,

An increase in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carned interest results from a
decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date
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Notes to the financial statements

LPO15627

1 Portfolio income
2018 2017
€ €
Interest Income 26,189,217 12,688,496
Foreign exchange (113,897) (548,845)
26,075,220 12,139,651
2 Realised profits/(losses) over value on the disposal of
investments
Quoted Unquoted 2018
Investments investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax - 146,248,404 146,248,404
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments - (79,426,177) (79,426,177)
- 66,822,227 66,822,227
Quoted Unquoted 2017
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax 44,118,097 24,178,908 68,297,005
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments (44,118,097) (24,186,935) (68,305,032)
- (8,027) {8,027}
3 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Bank charges 3 29
3 29

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €8,214 (2017: €7,021) was borne by 3i plc, a feliow subsidiary
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4 Investments

LPQ15627

Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2017 91,219,036 513,295 675 604,514,711
Additions during the year — cash - 596,080 596,080
Additions during the year — interest - 20,487,615 20,487,615
Disposals, repayments and write-offs - (79,426 177) (79,426,177)
Fair value gain 38,986,390 14,895,895 53,882 285
Fair value at 31 March 2018 130,205,426 469,849 088 600,054,514
Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2016 - 539,071,974 538,071,974
Transfers between fair value Levels 111,101,149 (111,101,149) -
Additions during the year - cash - 29,456,029 29,456,029
Additions during the year - interest - 20,765,390 20,765,380
Disposals, repayments and wnte-offs (45,535,049} (24,186 ,936) (69,721,985)
Fair value gan 25,652,936 59,290,367 84,943,303
Fair value at 31 March 2017 91,219,036 513,295,675 604 514,711

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €153,285,044 (2017: €187,180,488) and toans of

€316,564,044 (2017. €326,115,187).

The holding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It 1s not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold

within one year

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following

hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description

Fiﬁancial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1

that are observable erther directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i e. derived from prices)

Quoted equity instruments

n

No Level 2 financial instruments

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market

data

instruments

Unguoted equity instruments and loan

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
2018 2018 2018 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Quoted investments 130,205,426 - - 130,205,426
Unquoted investments - - 469,849,088 469,849,088
130,205,426 - 469,849,088 600,054,514
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4 Investments (continued)

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 91,219,036 - - 91,219,036
Unquoted Investmenis - - 513,295,675 513,295,675
91,219,036 - 513,295,675 604,514,711

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not held any Level 2 investments

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Levei 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment’s characteristics change during the financial
period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate
level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of level 3 in the
year (2017 €111,101,149),

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value 513,295,675 535,071,974

Additions — cash 596,080 29,456,029

Additons — interest 20,487 615 20,765,390
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (79,426 177) (24,186,936}

Fair value movement 14,895 895 59,290,367
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 - (111,101,149)

Closing fair value 469,849,088 613,295,675

A net profit of €107,793,342 (2017. €80,768,819) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the
disposal of investments from level 3 assets.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2018 and classified as Level 3, 100% (2017 100%) were valued using a
multiple of earings.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
posttion.

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a muitiple of earnings -based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business medel and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 11 29x (2017: 11 81x). If the multiple used to value each unquoted investment
valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment portfolio
wolild be a decrease of €30.58 million {2017: €34.37 million) or 6 51% (2017 6 70%). If the multiple increased by
5% then the impact on the investment portfclic would be an increase of €30.58 million (2017: €34 39 million) or
6 51% (2017: 6.70%).
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5 Receivables

2018 2017
€ €
Deferred consideration recervable 9,175,871 -
9,175,871 -
6 Carried interest payable

2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 32,832,466 14,754,486

Carried interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 24 634 657 18,077,980
57,467,123 32,832,466
Of which. payable is greater than 1 year 57,467,123 32,832,466

Carned interest payable at the balance sheet date 1s discounted io reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €67,454,447

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underying investment portfolic would result in a
€5,112,103 increase in carried interest payable.

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€5,112,103 decrease in carned interest payable

7 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Parinership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income

8 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Parnership is subject to market price nsk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit nsk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’'s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership's market nsk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price nsk is analysed in note 4
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8 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/USD and EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP 7,820,989 14,930,979 21,422,710
uso 7,068,542 13,475,399 19,334,268
14,879,531 28,406,378 40,756,878
5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 6,417,058 12,250,750 17,677,162
Ush 7,289,806 13,916,902 19,967,729
13,706,865 26,167,652 37,544,891

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership's assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €609,376,672
(2017: €604,534,107) and the total liabilities {including accrual for carried interest} were €57 467,123 (2017:

€32,832,466).

% of total Partnership assets 2018 2017
GBP 27.0% 236%
usp 24 3% 26 8%

51 3% 50.4%

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify nsk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolic.

The Parinership participates in nine portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying nvestments of
the Partnership

Credit risk in refation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and recervables within the investment portfolio
is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not past due
it is belleved that the risk of default 1s small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fall in the next 12 months, the increase in credit nsk 1s included within the overal!
assessment of the fair value of the investment

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.
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8 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liq uid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash 1s available for
both operational expenses and investments through capita! calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commilments of €67.971,071 (2017: €63,001,446)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €469,849,088 (2017: €513,295,675) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this nsk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet cutstanding commitments, other liabilties
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

Liabilities arising from Carried interest payable will only crystallise f and when the perfformance conditions are met,
and wilt only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from underlying
assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see accounting policy
M).

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €57,467,123 (31 March 2017: €32,832,466) has no stated maturity
as carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identfy with certainty the
timing of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other habilities to analyse into relevant matunty
groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate nsk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership 1s considered to be the capital contnbutions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €551,909,549 (2017: €571,701,641) at the reporting date. There are nc externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

9 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary cour se of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 6.
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9 Related parties (continued)

General Partner

The Partnership pays a prionty profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a prionty profit share equal to 1.50% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party i1s in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry date, the prionty profit share is equal to 1.50% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period exprry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Parinership. The General Partner 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 4,914,969 4,000,596

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 111,958 1,079,694

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
1s possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding 1s greater than or equal to 20% The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 1,132,196 35,826,941
Realised profits/{(losses) on the disposal of investments 66,868,134 {6,593)
Portfolio income 9,350,171 2,769,582
Statement of financial position
Unquoted investments 75,955,069 150,407,876
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10 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings and this
is set out below Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings
In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of
shares

The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2018 are listed below.

Associates
Holding / Country of Principal
Name share class Address incorporation activity
o 20 17% Ordinary  Apex Way, Hailsham, Investment
Colorado Holdco Limited  Shareg BN27 3WA UK halding vehicle
. 20 71% Ordinary 432‘_1:":3'53:“‘:‘;2:":6' Investment
Shield Holdco LLC Shares NY‘ 10017 " USA holding vehicle

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

11 Controlling party

3i is the ultimate parent undertaking of the Partnership and is also the controlling party of the Manager and of the
General Partner of the Partnership. Copies of the 3i financial statements which include the Partnership are available
from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 54D.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 31 Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i PE 2013-16B LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership s to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
fegions in which 31 Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide

The main key performance indicators are as follows

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 6,026,194 4,282 457
Net assets attributable to Partners 26,321,849 25,879,982

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexad financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows derived from portfolio iIncome of €228,890 and proceeds from investment of
€5,615,014. Other contributing factors to performance inciude the unreahsed gains on the value of the remaining
investments of €2,392,727.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The pnncipai nsks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

s  Market price risk
«  Currency risk

s  Concentration risk
s Credt nsk

»  Liquidity nisk

Interest rate risk
« Capital management

»
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management frame work whose primary objective 1s to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive nsk-adjusted returns to mnvestors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitar the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 7

For and on behalf of 3i investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

e May 2018

Registered office
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 12 July 2013 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907 The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i GP 2013 Ltd

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to reatise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authonised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 months For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no matenal events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behaif of the members confirms that: (a} so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to estabiish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Ernst & Young LLP was reappointed and remarns as auditor of the Partnership in accorgance with
clause 11.3 of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and pn behalf of 3i Investments plc

asi Halai
Director

16 May 2018

Registered office;
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Members' report, Strategic report and the
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Members’ report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to-

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it 1s inapproprate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibiliies of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor's report to the Members of 3i PE 2013-16B LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i PE 2013-16B LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A ta L and the related notes 1 ta 9. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopled by the European Union.

in our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the quaiifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Qur responsibilites under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the gualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements ih the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion .

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we nught state to the qualifying partnership's members those matters we are required lo state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report

ta you where:

« the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate, or

« the members have not disclased in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adapt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than

the financial statements and our auditor's report therecn. The members are responsible for the other information

Qur opinion ¢n the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated I we dentfy such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required te determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other infermation. If, based on the work
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Auditor’s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing te report in this regard

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

¢ the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In ight of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained | n the course

of the audit, we have identified no materal misstatements 1n the strategic report or members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as apphed to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

= certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Respective responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the Members’ responsibiities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view , and for
such internal control as the members deterrmine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liguidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have ng realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists Misstatements can anse from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at hitps:/fwww.frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

East L b mpirp
Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

[6 may 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP015628

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfolio income 1 1,112,523 541,495
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 2,392,727 3,959,823
Realised profits/(losses) over value on the digposal of 2 2,737,496 {311)
investments
Gross investment return 6,242,746 4,501,007
Pricrity profit share 8 (211,6558) (174,028)
Deal related costs (4,793) (44,228}
Operating expenses 3 (58) (129)
Net interest expense (27) {(127)
Exchange movements (21) (38)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 6,026,194 4,282 457

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired of

discontinued in the year

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP015628

Capital Loan Profit and loss
Contributions account account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of 25 879,982
Partners’ accounts 2,210 17,538,298 8,339.474 879,98
Drawdowns from Partners - 235,978 - 235,978
Distributions to Partners - (5,820,305) - (5,820,305)
2,210 11,953,971 8,339,474 20,295,655
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 6,026,194 6,026,194
Closing balance of
Partners' accounts 2,210 11,953,971 14,365,668 26,321,849
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 2,210 19,203,223 4,057,017 23,262,450
Drawdowns from Partners - 1,233,500 - 1,233,500
Distributions to Partners - (2,898,425) - {2,898,425)
2,210 17,638,298 4,057,017 21,597,525
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 4,282,457 4,282 457
Closing balance of
Partners' accounts 2,210 17,538,298 8,339,474 25,879,982

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements

10
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LP015628

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 4 )

- Quoted investments 5,710,210 4 000,446

- Unquoted investments 20,214 807 21,877,208
Total non-current assets 25825017 25,877,654
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20,935 2,328
Receivable 5 375,897 -
To;al current assets 396,832 2,328
Total assets 26,321,849 25,879,982
Net assets attributable to Partners 26,321,849 25,879,982
Represented by:
Capital contributions 2,210 2,210
Loan account 11,953,971 17,638,298
Profit and loss accounts 14,365,668 8,338,474
Net assets attributable to Partners 26,321,849 25,879,982

The accounting policies on pages 13 fo 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

siatements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Manager

For apd on behalf of 3i Investments plc

!

Jasi Halai
Director

|6 May 2018

11
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15628

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (24,418) (1,199,806)
Proceeds from investments 5,615,014 2,925,281
Deal related costs paid (4,793) (44,228)
Portfolio income received 228,890 137,372
Bank interest received 2 107
Bank interest paid (29) (234)
Prigrity profit share paid {211,655) {174,028)
Operating expenses paid (58) (129)
Net cash flow from operating activities 5,602,955 1,644,335

Cash flow from fihancing activities
Drawdowns 235,978 1,233,500
Oistnibutions paid (5,820,305) (2,898,425)
Net cash flow from financing activities (5.584,327) (1,664,925)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 18,628 (20,590}
Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,328 22,959
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations {21) (41)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20,935 2,328

The accounting policies on pages 13 io 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"} as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied te financia! statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

" Effective for penods beginning on o after

IFRS9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS16 Lleases 1 January 2018

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 18 will have a
matenal impact on its results,

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader’s understanding. These pclicies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assurnptions are based on
histoncal experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and habilties that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estmates
are recognised in the pericd in which the estimate Iis revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the pernod
of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both current and future perieds. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described n the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments. The valuation
methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policy E and discussed in note 4

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfalio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.,

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income

E Investments investments are recognised and de-recagnised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initally recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital (‘IPEV") valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropniate information available at the
time of measurement.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments (continued)

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which 1s either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year If the fair value of an investment 1s assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction agamst any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
In portfolio value If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision i1s reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date. Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in note 1

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
In the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrve at the fair value of the unquoted equity and lcan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment incorne, analysed into
the following components:

| Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the farr value
of the proceeds received gross of withhalding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and recewvables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

Il Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
Investments between the start and end of the accounting penod converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at the reporting date.

lll.  Portfolio Income 1S income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recogmised to
the exdent that it 1s probable that there will be economic benefit and the iIncome can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and 1s only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates

G Operating expenses Al operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration of
the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals
basis.

H  Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The prionty profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J  Distributions All captal and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance 1s repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss account s.
A distribution 1s recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager Capital and loan amounts are
recogmised when a drawdown notice is 1ssued by the Manager.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

L  Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate poligy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected

discounted future cash flows and any changes in the ievel of impairment 1s recognised directly in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

15
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Notes to the financial statements

LPJ15628

1 Portfolio income
2018 2017
€ €
Interest income 1,117,193 563,978
Foreign exchange (4,670) {22,483)
1,112,623 541,495
2 Realised profits/(losses) over value on the disposal of
investments
Quoted Unquoted 2018
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax - 5,990,911 5,990,911
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments - (3,253,415) (3,253,415)
- 2,737,496 2,737,496
Quoted Unquoted 2017
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax 1,934,818 990,461 2,925,279
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments (1,934,818) (990,772) (2,925,580}
- 311) {311}
3 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Bank charges 56 129
56 129

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €8,214 (2017: €7,021} was borne by 3i plc, a fellow subsidiary

16
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4 investments

Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 Aprif 2017 4,000,446 21,877,208 25,877,654
Additions during the year — cash - 24 418 24 418
Additions during the year — interest - 883,633 883,633
Disposals, repayments and write-offs - (3,253,415) (3.253,415)
Fair value gain 1,709,764 682,963 2,392,727
Fair value at 31 March 2018 5,710,210 20,214,807 25925017
Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Totat
€ € €
Fair value at 1 Apni 2016 - 23,239,491 23,239,491
Transfers between fair value Levels 4,872,388 (4,872,388) -
Additions during the year — cash - 1,199,806 1,199,806
Additions dunng the year — interest - 891,826 891,826
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (1,996,959) (990,772) (2,987,731)
Fair value gain 1,125,017 2,409,245 3,534,262
Fair value at 31 March 2017 4,000,446 21,877,208 25,877,654

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €6,423,902 (2017. €7,722,357} and loans of
€13,790,905 (2017 €14,154,851).

The hoiding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
Investrents are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair vafue in the investments according to the following
hierarchy-

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets Quoted equity instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Leve! 2 financial instruments

that are observable either directly (i e. as prices) or
indirectly (1.e. derived from prices}

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on chservable market Unquoted equity instruments and foan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 5,710,210 - - 5,710,210
Unquoted investments - - 20,214,807 20,214,807
5,710,210 - 20,214,807 25,925,017

17
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4 Investments (continued)

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 4,000,446 - - 4,000,446
Unquoted investments - - 21,877,208 21,877,208
4,000,446 - 21,877,208 25,877,654

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment's characteristics change during the financial
perod and investments no longer meet the cniteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate
level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of level 3 in the
year (2017 €4,872,388)

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value 21,877,208 23,239,491
Additions — cash 24 418 1,199,806
Additions — interest 883,633 891,826
Disposals, repayments and write-offs {3,253,415) (990,772)
Fair value movement 682 963 2,409,245
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 - (4,872,388)
Closing fair value 20,214,807 21,877,208

A net profit of €4,532,982 (2017; €3,330,298) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as portfalic
income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the disposal of
investments from level 3 assets.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2018 and classified as Level 3, 100% {2017: 100%} were valued using a
multiple of earnings

The farr values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position

Valuation Techniques

Valyation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earnings -based valuation. The multiple 1s
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business mode! and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity nsk, growth potential and relative performance The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 11.19x (2017 11 71x) If the multiple used to value each unquoted investment
valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment portfolio
would be a decrease of €1.31 million (2017: €1.46 million) or 6 50% (2017 6 96%). If the multiple increased by 5%
then the impact on the investment portfolioc would be an increase of €1.31 million (2017: €1 46 million) or 6 50%
(2017 6.68%)

18



3i PE 2013-16B LP LP015628

5 Receivables

2018 2017

€ €

Deferred consigeration receivable 375,897 -
375,897 -

6 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Parinership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the ndividual Partners Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

7 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market ptice risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditons within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market risk is reqularly managed by the
Manager

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primanly from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 4.

Currency risk

A signfficant exposure to currency nsk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency rnisk relating to EUR/USD and EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with ait other vanables heid canstant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP 320,396 611,665 877,606
uso 295,326 563,805 808,938
615,722 1,175,470 1,686,544

As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 262,887 501,875 720,082
usD 305,613 583,444 837,115
568,500 1,085,319 1,657,197
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €26,321,849
(2017 €25,879,982) and the total liabilites were nil (2017 nil}.

% of total Partnership assets 2018 2017
GBP 25.6% 21.3%
usbD 23.5% 24 8%

48.1% 46 1%

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify nsk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the matunty profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partrership participates in nine portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the investments

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered mto with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4 The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment portfolio
Is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolic companies. For those assets that are not past due
it is believed that the nsk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Parnership’s investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk s included within the overall
assessment of the fair value of the investment

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to mest
commitments as they falf due The Manager is responsible for determining the leval of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership A prudent liquidity risk management approach 1s adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €1,425,088 (2017: €1,661,066)
which 1s callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €20,214,807 (2017: €21,877,208) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The Manager
manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilites incurred
by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks {(continued)

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €26,321,849 (2017 €25,873,9682) at the reporting date There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income vield. No
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

8 Related parties

Dunng the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its i/mpact on the financial statements is detailed below.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner During the investment period, the Ganeral
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.50% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is equal to 1 50% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of nvestments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting penod.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 211,655 174,028

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

Dunng the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 31, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income . € €
Recharged costs 4,793 44,228

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or other significant hoidings.

9 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultmate contrclling party
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Strategic report

The Directors of 31 Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 31 PE 2013-16C LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i"} iInvests worldwide

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 193,793,122 140,041,637
Net assets atiributable to Parthers 832,684 434 826,295,410

The results for the year and financial pesition of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by strong asset cash flows derived from portfolio iIncome of €7,647,612 and proceeds from investments of
€187,607,708. Other contributing factors to performance include the unrealised gamns on the value of the remaining
investments of €73,561,816.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes In the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis The principal rsks and uncertainties
facing the Parinership are considered to be the following:

o Market price risk

e  Currency risk

e Concentration risk

¢ Credit nsk

s Liquidity risk

= interest rate risk

+ Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management frame work whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of nsk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 7

For and on behalf of 31 Investments plc

Jast Halai
Director

[© May 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWI1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 12 July 2013 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907, The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD The General Partner of the Partnership 1s 31 GP 2013 Ltd.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008

The principal activity of the Partnership 1s to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions i which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer tnvesting other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
Investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners’ interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners' accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibiity for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager 1s authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authonty.

Going concern

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that (a) so far as itis aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor i1s unaware, and (b} it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

Durning the year, Ermnst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 11.3 of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halat
Director

[ o May 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Members’ report, Strategic report and the
financial statements

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Members' report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reperting
Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU"} and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that peried.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business

The Manager has been appotinted by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership's transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities  The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i PE 2013-16C LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i PE 2013-16C LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes In Partners’ accounts, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to L and the related notes 1 to 10. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements-

» give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We ¢onducted our audit in accordance with International Stan dards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibiltties under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropniate to provide a basis for our opinion .

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of the Companies Act 2006 as appilied to qualifying partnerships. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for nc other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this repon, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report

to you where:

« the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate, or

« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a pericd of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authornsed for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the cther information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing $0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we dentify such material
inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required tc determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
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Auditor’s report (continued)

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

« the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment cbtamned in the course

of the audit, we have dentified no matertal misstatements in the strategic report or members’ report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion

* adeqguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visted by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

= certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received alt the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members’ responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view , and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from matenal misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to ¢ease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at hitps:/Awww.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities  This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

t( yinf /L f {/ﬂ/ Lt P

Maxarniliane Bark (Senior sté/ory auditor)

for and on behaif of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

6 May 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfolic income 1 35,643,812 16,571,043
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 73,561,816 130,423,735
Realised profits/(loss) on the disposal of investments 2 91,457 896 (11,055)
Gross investment return 200,663,524 146,983,723
Prionty profit share 8 (6,716,674) {5,455,389)
Deal related costs (153,013) (1,477,751)
Operating expenses 3 (3) (29)
Net interest (expense)/income (546) 1,494
Exchange movements {166) 1
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 193,793,122 140,041,637

All tems In the above statement are denved from continuing operations Nc operatons were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting palicies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 22 form an integral part of these financial

statements,
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15629

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 73,840 558,916,430 267,305,140 826,295,410
Drawdowns from Partners - 6,897,800 - 6.897.800
194
Distributions to Partners - (194,301,898) - (194,301,898)
73,840 371,512,332 267,305,140 638,891,312
Profit and Tetal comprehensive
income for the year - - 193,793,122 193,793,122
Closing balance of
Partners' accounts 73,840 371,512,332 461,098,262 832,684,434
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 73,840 609,352,569 127,263,503 736,689,912
Drawdowns from Partners - 41,801,000 - 41,801,000
Distnbutions to Partners - (92,237,139) - (92,237,139)
73,840 558,916,430 127,263,503 686,253,773
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 140,041,637 140,041,637
Closing balance of
Partners' accounts 73,840 558,916,430 267,305,140 826,295,410

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 16 and the notes on pages 16 to 22 form an integral part of these financial

statements

10
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LP0O15629

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 4

- Quoted investments 177,832,347 124,585,404

- Unquoted investments 642,102,654 701,684,336
Total nen-current assets 819,935,001 826,269,740
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 190,651 25670
Receivables 5 12,558,782 -
Total current assets 12,749,433 25,670
Total assets 832,684,434 826,295,410
Net assets attributable to Partners 832,684,434 826,295,410
Represented by:
Capital contributions 73,840 73,840
Loan account 371,512,332 558,916,430
Profit and loss accounts 461,098,262 267,305,140
Net assets attributable to Partners 832,684,434 826,295,410

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 22 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authonised for issue by the Manager.

nd on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

lo May 2018

1
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
€ €

Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (815,839) (40,322,547)
Proceeds fram investments 187,607,708 93,348,812
Deal related costs paid {153,013} (1,477.751)
Portfolio income received 7647612 4,345,166
Bank interest received 13 3,512
Bank interest paid {559} (2,018}
Prionty profit share paid (6,716,674) (5,465,389)
Qperating expenses paid (3) (29)
Net cash flow from operating activities 187,569,245 50,429,756

Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 6,897,800 41,801,000
Distributions paid (194,301,898) {92,237,139)
Net cash flow frem financing activities (187,404,008) (50,436,139)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 165,147 {6,383)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 25,670 32,464
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations {168) (411)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 190,651 25,670

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 22 form an integral part of these financial
statements

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Comparies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates

~ Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS @ " Financial instruments N 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 __Leases ____1January 2018

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 8, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a
material impact on its results

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader’s understanding. These pelicies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and Yabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estmates
are recognised in the pericd 1n which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most signsficant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments. The valuation
methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policy E and discussed in note 4.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of mnvesting in portfolic investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which reguire the delivery or settlement of the investment

investments are designated at fair valug through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given Quoted Investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted inv estments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair vaiue in accordance with the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital ("IPEV") valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information available at the
time of measurement.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments (continued)

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment 1s assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. "Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above the fair value of the
loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on the revaluation of an
investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates it force at the revaluation date Any foreign exchange
differences arising between the recognition and reversal of the provision are shown as foreign exchange in note 1

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value 1s then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components’

l. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair vaiue
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and s carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted Into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

1 Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at the reporting date.

1. Portfolio income 1s income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It 1s recognised to
the exdent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference o the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable ,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share i1s paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
availabie for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA The priority profit share i1s treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as 1t 1s a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA,

I Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distrbuted among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss account s.
A distribution 1s recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Pariners have subscnbed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice 1s issued by the Manager.
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Accounting policies {continued)

L Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date fo determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
disceunted future cash flows and any changes in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

2018 2017

€ €

Interest income 35,799,835 17,322,229
Foreign exchange (166,023) (751,1886)
35,643,812 16,571,043

2 Realised profits/(losses) over value on the disposal of

investments
Quoted Unquoted 2018
Investments investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax - 200,166,490 200,166,490
Opening fair value of disposed
investments - (108,708,594) (108,708,594)
- 91,457 896 91,457,896
Quoted Unquoted 2017
Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments gross of
withholding tax 60,255,752 33,093,060 93,348,812
Opening carrying value of disposed
investments (60,255,752) (33,104,115} (©3,359,867)
- (11,055) (11,055)
3 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Bank charges 3 29
3 29

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €8,214 (2017: €7,021) was borne by 31 ple, a fellow subsidiary

16



3t PE 2013-16C LP

4 Investments

LPO15629

Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2017 124,585,404 701,684,336 826,269,740
Additions duning the year — cash - 815,839 815,839
Additions during the year — interest - 27,996,200 27,996,200
Disposals, repayments and write-offs - (108,708,594) (108,708,594)
Fair value gain 53,246,043 20,314,873 73,561,816
Fair value at 31 March 2018 177,832,347 642,102,654 819,935,001
Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 Apnl 2016 - 736,657,448 736,657,448
Transfers between fair value Levels 151,740,058 (151,740,058) -
Additions during the year - cash - 40,322 547 40,322,547
Additions duning the year - cash - 28,375,882 28,379,882
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (62,191,000) {33,104,115) {95,295,115)
Fair value gain 35,036,346 81,168,632 116,204,978
Fair value at 31 March 2017 124,585,404 701,684,336 826,269,740

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €209,652,613 (2017: €256,134,283) and loans of

€432,450,041 (2017: €445,550,053)

The helding period of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to \dentify with certainty investments that will be sold

within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following

hierarchy:
Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets Quoted equity instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments

that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Unquoted equity instruments and loan
instruments

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable mari;el
data

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 177,832,347 - - 177,832 347
Unquoted investments - - 642 102 654 842,102,654
177,832,347 - 642,102,654 819,935,001
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4 Investments {continued)

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 124,585,404 - - 124,585,404
Unguoted investments - - 701,684,336 701,684,336
124,585,404 - 701,684,336 826,269,740

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Leve! 2 investments

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment’s characteristics change during the financial
period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate
level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of level 3 in the
period (2017: €151,740,058).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value 701,684,336 736,657,448
Addttions - cash 815,839 40,322,547
Additions - interest 27,996,200 28,379,882
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (108,708,594) (33,104,115}
Fair value movement 20,314,873 81,168,632
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 - (151,740,058)
Closing fair value 642,102,654 701,684,336

A net profit of €147,416,581 (2017: €110,524,399) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
pertfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the
disposal of investments from leve! 3 assets

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in a ccounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2018 and classified as Level 3, 100% (2017 100%} were valued using a
multiple of earnings

The fair values of al! other assets approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial position.
Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earmings -based valuation The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
In the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance The value weighted average multipie
used when valuing the portfolio was 11 29x (2017: 11 81x) If the multiple used to value each unquoted tnvestment
valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment porifolio
would be a decrease of €41 80 million {2017: €46.99 million) or 6.51% (2017: 6 70%) If the multiple increased by
5% then the impact on the investment portfolic would be an increase of €41.80 million (2017: €47.02 million} or
6.51% (2017 6.70%)
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5 Receivables

2018 2017

€ €

Deferred consideration receivable 12,588,782 -
12,588,782 -

6 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation ansing on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income

7 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit nsk, liquidity risk, interest
rate nsk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market nsk is the patential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk ansing from uncertainties about future market
canditions within which the investments cperate. The Parinership’'s market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships' sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 4.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/USD and EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% mn relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP 10,704,401 20,435 674 29,320,750
usp 9,654 663 18,431,629 26,445,381
20,359,064 38,867,303 55,766,131

As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 8,782,877 16,767,310 24,057,445
usD 9,970,373 19,034,349 27,310,153
18,753,250 35,801,659 51,367,598
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership's exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership's assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €832 684,434
(2017: €826,295,410) and the total liabilities were nil (2017. nil).

% of total Partnership assets 2018 2017
GBP 27 0% 22 3%
usD 24 3% 253%

51.3% 47 6%

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity prefile of its investment portfolio

The Partnership paricipates in nine portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investments

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the potential that an 1ssuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of

the Partnership

Credit nsk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment portfolio
is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolic companies For those assets that are not past due
it is belleved that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio company
has falled or 1s expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit nsk 15 included within the overalt
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties rasing liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due The Manager is responsible for determining the level of hqud funds to be held by
the Partnership A prudent hiquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operaticnal expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
investments As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €80,274,791 (2017: €87,172,681)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA

The Partnership’s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €642,102,654 (2017: €701,684,336) in investments that it considered to be illiquid The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other habilties
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term hquidity needs, as they fall due

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to mterest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, ioan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €832,684,434 (2017: €826,295,410) at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

8 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1 50% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership’s activities. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is equal to 1.50% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

The General Partner 1s a related party of the Partnership, being responsibie for the financial and op erating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 6,716,674 5,465,389

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i pic, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses

2018 2017
Statermment of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 163,013 1,477,751

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -
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8 Related parties (continued)

Related undertakings

LPO15629

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unquoted and guoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 19,435,270 95,387,389
Realised profits/(losses) on the disposal of investments 91,457 896 (11,055)
Portfolio Income 35,643,812 15,107,877
Statement of financial position
Unquoted investments 490,951,310 701,684,335

9 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts}
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership's related undertakings and this
is set out below Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of

shares.

The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2018 are listed below.

Associates
Holding / share Country of
class incorporation Principal
Name Address or residence  activity
Klara Holdco SA 27.12% Ordinary 9 Rue Sainte Zithe, L- Investment
Shares 2763 Luxembourg holding vehicle
Colorado Heldeo 27.6% Ordinary Apex Way, Hailsham, Investment
Limited Shares East Sussex, BN27 3wA UK helding vehicle
400 Madison Avenue
D, H 1)
Shield Holdeo ~ 20-34% Ordinary Suite 9C, New York, NY  jsa nvestment
LLC Shares 10017 Holding Vehicle
24 99% Ordinary 9 Rue Sainte Zithe, L- Investment
Fuel Holdco SA Shares 2763 Luxembourg holding vehicle
5" Floor, 6 St Andrew
0, H )
Harper Topco 2o 00% Ordinary Street, London, EC4A UK Investment
Limited Shares 2AE Holding Vehicle
New Mill, New Mill Lane
27.26% Qrdinary . ; . ’ Investment
Boketto Holdco
Shares Witney, Oxfordshire, UK Holding Vehicle

Limited OX29 95X

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

10 Controlling party

31 is the ultimate parent undertaking of the Partnership and is also the controlling party of the Manager and of the
General Partner of the Partnership. Copies of the 3i financial statements which include the Partnership are available

from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the "Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Klara C1 LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i"} invests in worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017
€ €
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 10,530,181 4,058,377
carried interest expense
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,283,745 3,613,309
Net assets attributable to Partners 67,565,937 57,777,192
Total attributable to Partners 69,576,962 58,541,781

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial
statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by portfolio income of €3,667,138. Other contributing factors to performance include the unrealised gains
on the value of the remaining investment of €7,380,036. The partnership did not make any distributions to
Partners in the year.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

«  Market price risk

«  Currency risk

« Concentration risk

«  Credit risk

« Liquidity risk

+ Interest rate risk

« Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor
the management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated nsk policies are found in
note 7.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments pic

Jasi Halai
Director
2% June 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWH1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present their Members’ report and the financial
statements of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 10 August 2015 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited
Partnership under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street,
London, SW1E 5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i GP 2013 LTD. The Designated Limited Partner
of the Partnership is 3i 2004 GmbH & Co KG.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise
individual investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager intends to drawdown sufficient funds from the Partners to cover any ongoing Partnership expenses
as per the Limited Partnership Agreement (*LPA") to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on
a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young was appointed as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with clause 11.5 of the
Limited Partnership Agreement (“LPA”} and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006

For and on behalf of 3i investments plc

Jasi Halai
Oirector

2% June 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5JD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appcinted the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members' report and
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law. Under law the
Manager must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financiat statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on a going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below respensibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicabie to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have
complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 3i Klara C1 LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Klara C1 LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to M and the related notes 1 to 9. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Intemnationat
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and cof its
profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK]}) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinicn.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs {UK) require us to
report to you where:

= the members' use of the going concemn basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

+» the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant ¢oubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the gaing
concemn basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

OQur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

» the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or members' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 200(_5 as applied to
qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to hiquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have ne realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of

Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fuliest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

{mffdf (/()u Lol

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statftory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

zgdune 2018



3i Klara C1 LP L.P016801
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

€ €

Portfolio income 1 3,667,138 3,398,608
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 3 7,380,036 926,436
Gross investment return 11,047,174 4,325,044
Priarity profit share 8 (494,394) (457,727}
Operating expenses 2 (22,534) 231,060
Net interest expense (11} -
Exchange movements (54) -
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 10,530,181 4,058,377
year before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 5 (1,246,436) (445,068)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 9,283,745 3,613,309

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these

financial statements.



3iKlara C1LP

Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP016801

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 200 51,256,481 6,520,511 57.777,192
Drawdowns from Partners - 505,000 - 505,000
200 51,761,481 6,520,511 58,282,192
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 9,283,745 9,283,745
Closing balance of
Partners’ accounts 200 51,761,481 15,804,256 67,565,937
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 200 50,726,481 2,907,202 53,633,883
Drawdowns from Partners - 530,000 - 530,000
200 51,256,481 2,907,202 54,163,883
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 3,613,309 3,613,309
Ciosing balance of
Partners' accounts 200 51,256,481 6,520,511 57,777,192

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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JiKlara C1LP LPD16801

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017
Assets € €
Non-current assets

Investments 3

- Unguoted investments 69,189,360 58,142,186
Total non-current assets 69,189,360 58,142,186
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 393,359 405,219
Total current assets 393,359 405,219
Total assets 69,582,719 58,547,405
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable 5 (2,011,025) {764,589)
Total non-current liabilities (2,011,025) (764,589)
Current liabilities
Payables F (5,757) (5,624)
Total current liabilities (5,757) (5,624)
Total liabilities (2,016,782) {770,213)
Net assets attributable to Partners 67,565,937 57,777,192
Represented by:
Capital contributions 200 200
Loan account 51,761,481 51,256,481
Profit and loss accounts 15,804,256 6,520,511
Net assets attributable to Partners 67,565,937 57,777,192
Carried interest allocation 2,011,025 764,589
Total attributable to Partners 69,576,962 58,541,781

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these
financial statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For arl on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

2 June 2018
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3iKlara C1 LP LPO16801
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes 2018 2017

€ €

Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 3 - 560,578
Bank interest paid (11) -
Priority profit share paid (494,394) (497,727)
Operating expenses paid (22,455) (321,772)
Net cash flow from operating activities {516,860) (258,921)
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns received 505,000 530,000
Net cash flow from financing activities 505,000 530,000
Change in cash and cash equivalents (11,860) 271,079
Opening cash and cash equivalents 405,219 134,140
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 393,359 405,219

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these

financial statements.

12



3iKlaraC1LP LPO16801

Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The 1ASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with
periods commencing on or after the following dates:

 Effective for periods beginning on or after

IFRS9  Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revanue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a
material impact on its results.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied
and apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a gaing concem basis and are presented in euros, the
functional currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Pariners’ capital commitments, drawdowns
and distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried
interest payable. The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and
discussed in note 3. The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy M.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio
investments are sold at their fair valyes at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest
received and paid will depend on the cash realisations of these portolio investments and valuations may change
significantly in the next financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant
accounting estimate, as detailed above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment
portfolic is disclosed in note 5.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating retums in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

13



Accounting policies (continued)

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions
are translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are
taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at
the reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including
both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the Intermational Private
Equity and Venture Capital ("IPEV”) valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information
available at the time of measurement.

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment
addrions duting the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan,
the Partnership recognises a fair value reduction aganst any interest income accrued from the date of the
assessment going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued
interest which has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an
equal reduction in portfolio vaiue. If the fair value of such an investment is subsequently assessed to be above
the fair value of the loan, the interest provision is reversed, with the amount disclosed as an unrealised gain on
the revaluation of an investment, converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the revaluation date.

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different ioan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

|. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converied into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

Il. Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting penod converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at the reporting date.

lli. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. it is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

14



Ji Klara C1 LP LP016801

Accounting policies (continued)

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Pariners, as determined by the LPA. The pricrity profit share is treated as an
expense in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual
obligation with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

i Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J  Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Parthers based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted
for as a deduction to the Joan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss
accounts. A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in
commitments represented by capital contnbutions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as
the timing and amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and
loan amounts are recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L  Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to e payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

M Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the cutstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partners share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to
reflect the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest
expense in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest result from
a decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

15



3i Klara C1LP

Notes to the financial statements

LP0O16801

1 Portfolio income

2018 2017
€ €
Interest income 3,667,138 3,398,608
3,667,138 3,398,608

2 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 5,122 4,554
Establishment cost* - (255,764)
Administration fees 17,332 17,732
Tax compliance expenses 79 2,418
22,534 {231,060)

*In the prior year there was a write back of over accrual of establishment cost

3 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €11,889,675 (2017: €4,509,639) and loans of

€57,299,685 (2017: €53,632,547).

The holding periog of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty invesiments that will be sold

within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the

following hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices}

Level 3 Inputs that are not based cn observable market

data

Financial instruments
No Level 1 financial instruments

No Level 2 financial instruments

Unguoted equity instruments and loan

instruments

16



3iKlara C1LP LP016801

3 Investments (continued)

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unquoted investments - - 69,189,360 69,189,360
- - 69,183,360 69,189,360

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unquoted investments - - 58,142,186 58,142,186
Total - - 58,142,186 58,142,186

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Lavel 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. Whenh an investment's characteristics change during the
financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or gut of
level 3 in the year (2017: nil).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair vaiue 58,142,186 54,377,720
Additions — cash - {560,578)

Additions — interest 3,667,138 3,398,608

Fair value movement 7,380,036 926,436

Closing fair value 69,189,360 58,142,186

A net profit of €11,047,174 (2017: €4,325,044) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio income and unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments from level 3 assets.

Leve! 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2018 and classified as Level 3, 100% (2017: 100%) were valued using a
multiple of earnings.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

17



3iKlara C1LP LPC16801

3 Investments (continued)

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earnings-based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and prcfile are selected and then
adjusted for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted
average multiple used when valuing the portfolio was 9.0x (2017: 9.0x). If the muitiple used to value each
unquoted investment valued on an eamings multiple basis as at 31 March 2018 decreased by 5%, the impact on
the investment portfolio would be a decrease of €5,013,892 (2017: €4,344,773) or 7.25% (2017: 7.47%). If the
multiple increased by 5% then the impact on the investment portfelio would be an increase of €5,013,892 (2017:
€4,344,773) or 7.25% (2017: 7.47%).

4 Payables
20138 2017
€ €
Audit fees 5.529 5.265
Tax compliance expenses 228 359
5,757 5,624
5 Carried interest payable
2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 764,589 319,521
Carried interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 1,246,436 445,068
2,011,025 764,589
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 2,011,025 764,589

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which
may be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the
accrual at the balance sheet date would be higher at €2,226,910

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€390,512 increase in carried interest payable.

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolic would resuft in a
€390,512 decrease in carried interest payable.

6 Taxation
No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the

income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statsment of comprehensive income.
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3i Kiara C1 LP LP016801

7 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration nsk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due tc the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptibie to market price risk ansing from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market risk 15 regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership's management of price risk, which arises primarily from unguoted equity instruments, 1s through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 3.

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was éxposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had EUR strengthened /
weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant, net assets
aftributable to Partners would have increased / decreased respectively by the amounts shown in the following
table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP 274 523 751

274 523 751
As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 251 479 687

251 479 687

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were €69,582,718
(2017: €58,547,405) and the total labilities {including accrual for carried interest) were €2,016,782 (2017:
€770,213).

% of total Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 0.29% 0.68%
0.29% 0.68%

99.71% (2017: 99.32%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of invesiments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolia.

The Partnership participates in one portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of investment.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/cr the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.
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3i Klara C1 LP LP0O16801

7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 3. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment
portfolio is based on the financial performance of the individual portfolioc companies. For those assets that are not
past due it is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be
made in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio
company has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 menths, the increase in credit risk 1s included within the
overall assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available
for both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds
from investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €nil (2017: €nil) which is
callable by the Manager. However, in accordance with the LPA, the Manager can call from Partners for
operational expenses.

Liabilities arising from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are
met, and will only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from
underlying assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see
accounting policy N}.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €69,189,360 (2017: €58,142,186} in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other
liabilities incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liguidity needs, as they fall due.

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
less than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1 -5 years years Total
€ € € €
Carried interest payable within one year
Other payables and accrued expenses 5757 - - 5,757
5,757 - - 5,757
As at 31 March 2017
Carried interest payable within one year
Cther payables and accrued expenses 5,624 - - 5,624
5624 - - 5,624

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €2,011,025 (31 March 2017: €764,589) has no stated maturity
as carred interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the
timing of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant
maturity groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are
in fixed rate loans.
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €67,565,937 (2017: €57,777,192) at the reporting date. There are no axternally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or investment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income yieid. No
changes were made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during
the year ended 31 March 2018,

8 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note 5.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.00% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the Ganeral Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment petiod expiry date, the pricrity profit share is equal to 1.00% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating
decisions of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings ple, a subsidiary of
3i and the Designated Limited Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Deutschland GmbH, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Staterment of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 494,394 497,727

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 17,544 20,150
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 228 359

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

9 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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3i Mito S1b LP LP015978

Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Mito S1b LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2018 2017

€ €

Profit and tota! comprehensive income for the year before 4,234,851 2,898,264
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,628,735 2,606,732

Net assets attributable to Partners 12,379,619 8,750,884

Total attributable to Partners 14,205,141 9,870,290

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €4,263,113. The Partnership did not make
any distributions to Partners in the year.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

«  Market price risk

e Currency risk

¢ Concentration risk

e Liquidity risk

« Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whase primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to

generate attractive risk-adjusted retums to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 7.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

28 June 2018

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWI1E 5JD
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members' present the Members' report on the Partnership for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 25 March 2014 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i GP 2013 Ltd and the Designated Limited Partner is 3i 2004
GmbH & Co KG.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Private Equity deals across all
regions in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropnate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concem

The Manager has performed an assessment on the Partnership’s ability to remain a going concem and concludes
there are sufficient resources available to cover the Partnerships obligations and that it can continue to operate for
the foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Members’ report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behaif of the members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is ng relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b} it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was appointed as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with clause 11.7
of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

2E June 2018

Registered office
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 5)D
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

in preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsibie for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitiss. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor's report to the Members of 3i Mito S1b LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Mito S1b LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the
Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement of financial
position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting pelicies A to M and the related notes 1 to 9. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the I1SAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

« the members' use of the going cancem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

= the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership's ability to continue to adopt the going
concem basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other infarmation comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than

the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partherships
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the members' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

» the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstaternents in the strategic report or members' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

« certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 8, the members are responsible

for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
contihue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reparting Council's website at hitps://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit wark has been undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditer's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

¢ 67&0 %ﬂt/l:f Ly
Maximillanc Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

2 S’ June 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Portfolio income 1 - 113,928
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 3 4,263,113 2,805,153
Gross investment return 4,263,113 2,919,081
Pricrity profit share 8 (100) {118)
Operating expenses 2 (28,236) (20,273)
Net interest expense (3) {428)
Exchange movement 77 -
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the 4,234 851 2,898 264
vear before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 5 {606,116) (291,532)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 3,628,735 2,606,732

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP0O15978

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 200 - 8,750,684 8,750,884
200 - 8,750,684 8,750,884
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 3,628,735 3,628,735
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 200 - 12,379,419 12,379,619
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 200 4,790,413 6,444,661 11,235,274
Distributions to Partners - (4.790,413) (300,709) (5,091,122)
200 - 6,143,952 6,144,152
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 2,608,732 2,606,732
Closing balance of Partners'
accounts 200 - 8,750,684 8,750,884

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2018

LPD15978

Notes 2018 2017

Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 3

- Quoted investments 14,237,833 9,874,720
Total non-current assets 14,237,833 9,974,720
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,170 1,172
Total current assets 1,170 1,172
Total assets 14,239,003 9,975,892
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carned interest payable 5 {1,825,522) {1,219,406)
Total non-current liabilities {1,825,522) (1,219,406)
Current liabilities
Payables 4 {33,862) {5,602)
Total current liabilities (33,862) {5,602)
Total liabilities {1,859,384) (1,225,008)
Net assets atiributahle to Partners 12,379,619 8,750,884
Represented by:
Capital contributions 200 200
Profit and loss accounts 12,379,419 8,750,684
Net assets attributable to Partners 12,379,619 8,750,884
Carried interest atlocation 1.825522 1,215,406
Total attributable to Partners 14,205,141 9,970,290

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financiat

statements.

The financial statements have been approved and autharised for issue by the Manager.

For agil on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Director

29 sune2018

11
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LPO15978

Notes 2018 2017
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Proceeds from investments - 4,824 257
Portfolio income received - 268,869
Bank interest paid (2 {426)
Priority profit share paid - {218)
Operating expenses paid - (21,093}
Net cash flow from operating activities (2) 5,071,389
Cash flow from financing activities
Distributions paid - (5,091,122)
Net cash flow from financing activities - (5,091,122)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (2) {19,733)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 1,172 20,905
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,170 1,172

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 21 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“|IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

IFRS9  Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue frem contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 or IFRS 16 will have a
material impact on its resulfs.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below, but where possible, they have been shown as part of the note to which they
specifically relate in order to assist the reader's understanding. These policies have been consistently applied and
apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future penods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methadologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policies E and discussed in note
3. The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy M.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolio investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 5.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
transiated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

13
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Quoted investments are subsequently measured at fair value using the closing bid price at the
reporting date where the investment is quoted on an active stock market. Unquoted investments, including both
equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the Internaticnal Private Equity and
Venture Capital ("IPEV") valuation guidelines, with reference to the most appropriate information available at the
time of measurement.

F  Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

I. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the date of disposal.

il. Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period converted into euros using the exchange rates
in force at the reporting date.

Il1. Portfolio income is income that is directly related tc the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable,
converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the accrual dates.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capital contributions and loan account Partrers have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

14
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Accounting policies {continued)

L Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

M Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner i1s entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking intc account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued camied interest results from a
decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

15
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

LP0O15978

2018 2017
€ €
Interest income - 113,928
- 113,928
2 Operating expenses
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees 5477 4,554
Fund administration expenses 14,679 15,452
Portfclio related expenses 7.880 -
Other expenses 200 267
28,236 20,273
3 Investments
Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ £ €
Fair value at 1 Apnl 2017 9,974,720 - 9,974,720
Fair value gain 4263,113 - 4,263,113
Fair value at 31 March 2018 14,237,833 - 14,237,833
Quoted Unquoted
investments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2016 - 12,148,766 12,148,766
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 12,148,766 (12,148,766} -
Additions during the year — cash - - -
Disposais, repayments and write-offs (4,979,199) - (4,979,199)
Fair value gain 2,805,153 - 2,805,153
Fair value at 31 March 2017 9,974,720 - 0,974,720

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises equity of €nil (2017: €nil) and loans of €nil (2017 €nil).

The helding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold

within one year,

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the

following hierarchy;

16
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3 Investments (continued)
Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets Quoted equity instruments
Level 2  Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments

that are cbservable either directly {i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market No Level 3 financial instruments
data

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 14,237,833 - - 14,237,833
14,237,833 - - 14,237,833

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 9,974,720 - - 9,974,720
Total 9,974,720 - - 9,974,720

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 2 or Level 3 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy above. When an investment's characteristics change during the financial
period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate
level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of level 3 in the
year (2017: €12,148,766).

Level 3 fair value reconciliation

2018 2017

€ €

Opening fair value - 12,148,766
Fair value movement - -
Disposals, repayments and write-offs - -
Transfer from Level 3 fo Level 1 - {12,148,766)

Closing fair value - -

A net profit of €4,263,113 (2017: €2,919,081) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as portfolio
income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments.

Leve! 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. No investments held at 31 March 2018 are classified as Level 3.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

17
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4 Payables
2018 2017
€ €
Audit fees payable 10,742 5,265
Priority profit share 200 100
Administration expenses 14,679 -
Other payables 8,241 237
33,862 5,602
5 Carried interest payable
2018 2017
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 1,219,406 927,874
Camied interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 606,116 291,532
Cash paid in the year - -
Other movements - -
1,825,522 1,219,406
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 1,825,522 1,219,406

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially iater than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €1,935,054.

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would resultin a €89,591
increase in carried interest payable.

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolioc would result in a
€89,591 decrease in camed interest payable.

6 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Parinership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

7 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, liquidity nsk and capital
management risk.

Market price risk
Market nsk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market rnisk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership's management of price risk, which arises pnmarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships' sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 3.

18
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7 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP. At 31 March 2018, had EUR strengthened /
weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant, net assets
attributable to Partners would have increased / decreased respectively by the amounts shown in the following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP 519 990 1,421
519 990 1,421
As at 31 March 2017 € € €
GBP 251 479 687
251 479 687

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership's total assets were €14,239,003
{2017: €9,975,892) and the total liabilities (including accrual far carried interest} were €1,859,384 (2017:
€1,225,008).

% of totai Partnership liabilities 2018 2017
GBP 0.59% 0.43%
0.59% 0.43%

99.41% (2017: 99.57%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in one portfolic investment and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materiaily and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of investment.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds te meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted te ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capita! calls from Partners and the retention of proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2018, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €nil (2017: €nil). However, in
accordance with the LPA, the Manager can call from Partners for operational expenses,

The Partnership’'s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2018,
the Partnership held €nil (2G17: €nil) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The Manager manages this risk
by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities incurred by the operating
activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

Liabilities arising from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met,
and will only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from underlying
assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meetthem when they fall due (see accounting policy
M).
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7  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2018 year 1 -5 years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 33,862 - - 33,862
33,862 - - 33,862

As at 31 March 2017

Other payables and accrued expenses 5,602 - - 5,602
5,602 - - 5,602

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €1,825,522(31 March 2017: €1,219,406) has no stated maturity
as carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the
timing of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity
groupings.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership 1s considered to be the capital contributions, foan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €12,379,619 (2017: €8,750,884) at the reporting date. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may
request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or invesiment
purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners en the sale of investments and receipt of income yield. No
changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

8 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements 1s detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carned interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out In note 5.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. The General Partner is entitled to receive a
priority profit share of €100 per annum.

The Designated Limited Partner shall be entitled to an amount up to maximum of €2,000 based on its portion of
the Partnership’s profit. This share is calculated based on its capital contribution over the total commitments in the
Partnership.
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8 Related parties (continued)

The General Partner is a related party of the Parinership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings pl¢, a subsidiary of 3i. The
Designated Limited Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Deutschland GmbH, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Lriority profit share 100 118
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 200 100

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses. '

2018 2017
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 22,785 11,726
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 22,997 237

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or other significant holdings.

9 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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